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Commitment to innovation to
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SHAREHOLDERS' CALENDAR
Register of Shareholders

Close of Register

For attending Annual General Meeting:
5June 2018 to 8 June 2018

(both days inclusive)

For receiving proposed final dividend:
14 June 2018 to 15 June 2018

(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

10:00 a.m. on 8 June 2018 at
Room 601-602, 6th Floor
COFCO Tower

262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Dividend

Interim dividend: HK7.6 cents per share
Paid on 15 December 2017

Proposed final dividend: HK7.3 cents per share
Payable on or about 28 June 2018

6 SERHERHBR 2 8 AMVIG Holdings Limited

IR B
REBFER
BiEmERNBrRERLTE
HERRBEFAE

—NFRXARLEZE
“Z-N\EXANB (BEEERAEA)

U B R R AR AR B, -
—E-N\FRATHHE-_Z—N\FRA+HA
(BiEEREMBEEA)

RRBEFRE
HR=ZZT—N\FANHB
FFTEER

B
A2 5 T T 3826255
PRERE

61£601-602F

3=\

FEIRR B - BAR7.678(L
ER=ZE—+tF+_A+RHBIREN

BRRHBE - &7 381
RZZT—=N\FRAZ+ N\ BSATRIEA



'|||]]li'|||llljllli|||i "iiﬂi"i'i'iif”“ﬁi’}

UM
T

|
|

i
l

Uty
i

I

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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GEOGRAPHICAL COVERAGE
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Anhui Qiaofeng Package Printing Co., Ltd.
("Qiaofeng Plant”)

Anhui RBEEELORERAR ((BEHE]) |
Cigarette packaging printing plant

=z# #EE LRI

Beijing Leigh-Mardon Pacific Packaging Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Plant”) |

Beijing EFBERAFFERERIE ([trEE])
alil Cigarette packaging printing plant
|41 /8 155 EVIRR

Dongguan KWG Colour Printing Co., Ltd. | |
("Dongguan KWG")

| Dongguan iﬁgﬁ%mﬁ[‘af\j (l’%ﬂ'%n/}?J) |
Cigarette packaging printing plant |

R 47 03 VIR

Hangzhou Weicheng Printing Co., Ltd. | |
("Hangzhou Weicheng”)
Hangzhou MM ERENRIBRAR ([FNER])
Cigarette packaging printing plant
M #EE R |

Kunming World Grand Innovation Printing Co., Ltd.
("Kunming Plant”) |

Kunming Eﬂﬂﬁéﬁﬂﬁmiﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ (T2#BHE 1)
Cigarette packaging printing plant
EERA B0 LRI |
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Qingdao Leigh-Mardon Packaging Co., Ltd. |
("Qingdao Plant”)
EEESHERERLA ([5E8HE D)

Cigarette packaging printing plant
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Nanjing Sanlong Packing Co., Ltd.
("Nanjing Plant”)
BRZEAEERAR ((AREE])

Cigarette packaging printing plant
e KRR

Yunnan Qiaotong Package Printing Co., Ltd.
("Qiaotong Plant”)
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Cigarette packaging printing plant
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Qingdao AMVIG Shuncheng Packaging Co., Ltd.
("Qingdao Shuncheng”)
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Transfer paper & laser film manufacturing plant
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Xi'an Great Sky Laser Hologram Co., Ltd. ] [|

(“Xi'an Plant”) |
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Laser film manufacturing plant |
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Cigarette packaging printing plant Transfer paper and laser film manufacturing plant

EIE B DRI

BB IR T IR B R
ZZT—LFFH Annual Report 2017 9



I P N
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESEEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors’), | am
pleased to present to you the annual results of AMVIG Holdings Limited (the
“Company” or "AMVIG", together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 (the "Reporting Period”).

This year, the tobacco sales stabilized and started to resume growth. Tobacco
sales and volume went up as compared to previous year, and registered
growth of 4.7% and 0.8%, respectively. However, production volume dropped
by 1.5% during the year owing to the continued de-stocking of high-end
cigarette brands. Overall profits and taxes had increased mildly by 3.2%.
All these information points towards a tough, but an improving market
environment for tobacco in China.

The Group's turnover was inevitably affected by the drop in production
volume of tobacco and thus its packaging needs. Sales of high-end tobacco
continued to be sluggish due to the austerity measures mandated by the
Central Government of China. The Group had neutralized such adverse
factors with a series of cost reduction and productivity improvement
measures. General administration and marketing expenses were also cut
down substantially, resulted in an improvement of the Group's net profit.

Another trend that was reversed during the year was the exchange rate of
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars. The appreciation of Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollar had positively impacted the Group's reported results
with an exchange gain of HK$67 million on the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
borrowings.

The Group has also successfully concluded the acquisition of Outstanding
Viewpoint Limited, a company which owns 60% of Yunnan Qiaotong Package
Printing Co. Ltd., and 54.8% of Anhui Qiaofeng Package Printing Co., Ltd. The
Acquisition enables the Group to consolidate its foothold in Yunnan Province,
the greatest province in terms of size of tobacco market in China.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK7.3 cents.

EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS

For the Reporting Period, the Group's turnover was HK$2,448 million, a
decrease of 4% as compared to last year. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$346 million in 2017, an increase of 97% as against that
of last year. Excluding the exchange gain and on a constant currency basis,
the Group's net profit attributable to owners of the Company registered an
increase of 6%. Basic earnings per share were HK37.2 cents representing an
increase of 97%. The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK7.3 cents per share, together with the interim dividends, total dividends of
HK14.9 cents per share were recommended for the Reporting Period.

The net cash inflows generated from operating activities for the Reporting
Period was approximately HK$312 million.
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OUTLOOK

Although the tobacco sales had pulled back during the past years due to a
number of reasons, we are cautiously optimistic about the prospects of the
tobacco market. It was encouraging to see signs of recovery towards the later
part of the year. At the same time, there were also well funded plans by the
State Tobacco Monopoly Administration to revitalize major tobacco brands in
China. It is also generally expected that brand consolidation may resume in
the coming years. Sizeable suppliers of major key brands like ourselves may
benefit from such consolidation.

The long-term fundamentals of the China tobacco industry will remain
unchanged. The tobacco industry contributed substantial amounts of
profit and tax to the state in recent years despite the slowdown and it will
continue to do so in the coming years. On the other hand, we expect the
new generation products, like the e-cigarettes will have limited impact on
tobacco sales. Against this background, the overall tobacco sales will resume
low single digit growth, albeit the volume of which may remain flat.

Through our investments in research and development and the cost cutting
initiatives, our results had improved when compared to the past year. The
Group will continue such efforts to maintain the momentum.

The completion of acquisition of the Outstanding Viewpoint Limited will
consolidate our position in Yunnan province, which is the largest tobacco
producing province in China. As reported, the Outstanding Viewpoint Limited
has 60% equity interests in a major tobacco packaging business in Yunnan
and 54.8% equity interests in another plant in Anhui. Through this acquisition,
the Group has a solid platform to serve the Hongta Group and expand further
in the Yunnan Province.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my gratitude to our customers, business partners and other stakeholders
for the consistent support and trust in helping us to grow the business. It is
our mission and commitment to continue to create higher returns for our
shareholders in these trying times.

Chan Chew Keak, Billy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018

[yl
| Il l :l |||

TN

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFWwE

RE

BEBE  CEEEXZRARFZEMERT
Al o @E ML RADEERET SN RIHR
BEBREE MEFTHFHRERTR &
EHFAD - BULREE  BREEZERING
RIEtE BTN EPUERPESKIE
BEME - THERBHEERABRRKE
EEMMEES - BRMEORLHER £
ERF KRR EE -

¢I%@ﬁ¥%§%%$l%%%hT“ &

MFESEMSRZ  BETERABERD
ﬂﬂ&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ FEARKER I
Eem—HH G BMEFHERNETREY
BEHEXETIKN - BRARM  BEHEER

BT - AT A R I A
Bk -

BB EWRERA - AFEREREF
AR - AREGEBES N ARR LS
SETEE o

FEERAE 2 WEEETAEZE IR F
BEEESRANEAHD —EFE 2 - 8
ERRAEEEMEIELBEOERE Z60%HE R

— BB 2 54.8% % HE o BIRUNEE BASKE
RIS IEEESTRENTALE —SHER
EFEES -

B AAEBEARRESFTS  HELHERH M
NEF - ¥BEBHREMBHE— Eu%%
AEBATIHFMEE  EAEE RS T
R - ERESHESEARFAEESEBRER
I8 ap S s ©

B
TR

Bt —E-N\F=ZA=-+=H

—-E 43R Annual Report 2017 15






AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
BEE WL

VARIOUS EFFORTS HAD

YIELDED
RESULTS

AND WILL CONTINUE
IN THE FUTURE

£ IEIE D RERRILER
R BT




P o N

MANAGHWHWTN&XBQONANDANAW&S

EE lﬂLnHﬁ& 7‘%

BUSINESS REVIEW

As destocking continued, production was reduced by our customers
which in turn affected our turnover during the Reporting Period. Turnover
dropped mildly when compared to that of last year. On the other hand, the
management has continued to counteract the adverse impact in the market
by reducing costs and expenses, as a result of which gross profit rate for the
year was broadly in line with last year. There was also a substantial reduction
in selling and administration expenses. Together with appreciation of
Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars, there was an exchange gain of HK$67
million. As a result, the net profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased substantially by 97% when compared to that of last year.

The operational cash flow of the Group continued to be strong. During the
Reporting Period, the net operational cash inflow of the Group amounted to
HK$312 million.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a drop in turnover of 4% (or
3% on constant currency basis) from HKS$2,551 million to HK$2,448 million.
This was mainly due to a reduction in production by the customers resulted
from overstocking of certain high-end brands cigarettes, the sales of which
were also affected by the increase in tobacco tax and austerity measures.

Gross Profit

During the Reporting Period, the overall gross profit rate was 29.5%, which
slightly decreased by 1.4 percentage points when compared to last year.
The reduction is a deterioration in product mix resulted from the sub-par
performance of high-end products. The impact has been mitigated by the
management’s efforts in reducing costs and improving efficiencies. Absolute
value of gross profit was HK$723 million, dropped by 8.3% (or 7.4% on a
constant currency basis) when compared to last year.

Other Income

Other income, comprising mainly interest income and exchange gain, was
HKS$135 million, which represents an increase of 64.8% when compared to
last year. During the Reporting Period, less interest income was recognized
due to a decrease in average bank balances as cash was used to repay
bank borrowings when compared to 2016. Such decrease was more than
offset by an exchange gain of HK$67 million, derived from the revaluation
of borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars against appreciating
Renminbi, the Group’s functional currency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operating Costs

Operating costs (including selling and distribution, administrative and
other operating expenses) decreased by HK$175 million from HKS$462
million in 2016 to HK$287 million in 2017. The decrease resulted from
(1) management’s efforts in controlling costs and (2) the absence of an
exchange loss on revaluing borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars
against appreciating Renminbi in the Reporting Period. Such exchange loss
amounted to HK$91 million in 2016.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased from HKS$85 million in 2016 to HKS$55 million for
the Reporting Period, as a result of the decrease in the bank borrowings
outstanding upon the refinancing exercise in February 2017. In addition, the
interest rate of the new banking facilities is lower than the previous one.

Share of Profit of Associates

Share of profit of associates was HK$17 million in 2017, representing a
decrease of HK$16 million when compared to last year. This was due to the
poor performance of one of our major associates as its product mix has
worsen together with volume drop during the Reporting Period.

Taxation

The effective tax rate of the Group decreased from 36% in 2016 to 24%
in 2017. The drop was mainly due to (1) the exchange gain recognized
on revaluing borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars against the
appreciating Renminbi, which were non-taxable; and (2) the reduction
of non-taxable interest income earned and non-tax deductible expenses
incurred overseas during the Reporting Period.

Profit attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HKS$346 million during the Reporting Period, representing an increase of
97% from HK$176 million in 2016. Excluding the exchange differences, and
on a constant currency basis, the Group’s underlying net profit increased by
6% to HK$282 million from HK$266 million. The increase was mainly due to
the results of cost savings in response to the decreased sales and worsening
product mix arising from the further destocking by the tobacco companies in
China.

Segmental Information

During the Reporting Period, substantially all the turnover was derived from
printing of cigarette packages.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Dividends

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK7.3 cents per
share (2016: HK2.2 cents) for the year ended 31 December 2017 to be payable
to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 15 June 2018. Subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company, the said final dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders
on or around 28 June 2018.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2017, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$6,439
million and its total liabilities amounted to HK$2,380 million, representing an
increase of HK$147 million and a decrease of HK$409 million, respectively as
compared to 31 December 2016. The increase in total assets was mainly due
to the appreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars, which caused the
Renminbi assets of the Group to appreciate in Hong Kong dollar terms. Total
liabilities decreased as the Group repaid a portion of its bank borrowings in
order to contain the foreign exchange risks.

Borrowings and Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had gross interest-bearing borrowings
of approximately HK$1,470 million (31 December 2016: HK$2,001 million),
representing a decrease of HK$531 million over the last year end. The
decrease of bank borrowings was due to the repayment of a portion of the
bank borrowings.

Substantially all of the interest-bearing borrowings are unsecured,
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denominated in Hong Kong dollars and bear interest at floating rates. The RIZEFERGE - REEG SEMAR%E 22 5

maturity profile of the Group’s gross interest-bearing borrowings is as follows: BAEHNT :
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
On demand or within one year RERIN—FR 3,597 704,834
In the second year E-F - 1,296,451
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=ZNF (AEMFEBEEN) 1,466,760 -
1,470,357 2,001,285

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months o (@A RFIEEEZIE

(shown under current liabilities) (RmEBaEdIR) (3,597) (704,834)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months @ A B E R RIE 1,466,760 1,296,451
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had committed but undrawn banking
facilities amounted to HK$520 million (31 December 2016: HK$S600 million).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net assets of HK$4,058 million
comprising non-current assets of HK$3,774 million, net current assets of
HKS$1,782 million and non-current liabilities of HK$1,498 million.

Gearing ratio, measured by total interest-bearing borrowings as a percentage
of equity, decreased from 57% as at 31 December 2016 to 36% as at 31
December 2017. Such decrease was mainly due to the repayment of a
portion of bank borrowings by the Group to contain the foreign currency
risks.

Charges on the Group's Assets

As at 31 December 2017, assets with carrying amount of approximately
HKS11 million (31 December 2016: HKS$2.2 million) were pledged to banks in
respect of banking facilities granted to the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2016: Nil).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments contracted but
not provided for in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment
of HK$38 million (31 December 2016: HK$30 million).

Working Capital

The current ratio increased from 191% at last year end to 302% at 31
December 2017. This was mainly due to a portion of the bank borrowings
amounted to HK$705 million classified under current liabilities as of 31
December 2016 had been repaid during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Foreign Currency Exposure

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s business transactions were mainly
denominated in Renminbi. All bank borrowings were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Since the functional currency of the Company is Renminbi, the
Group has foreign currency exposure on Hong Kong dollars related to its
bank borrowings.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are directly
related to the underlying business of the Group.

Acquisition and Disposal

On 22 September 2017 (as supplemented on 30 November 2017), the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement whereby it has conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire equity interests in, and the debts due by,
Outstanding Viewpoint Limited and its subsidiaries and associates at a cash
consideration of HK$700 million. Outstanding Viewpoint Limited owns 60%
equity interests in Yunnan Qiaotong Package Printing Co. Ltd., which is one
of the most renowned tobacco packaging companies in Yunnan, the PRC,
as well as 54.8% attributable equity interests in Anhui Qiaofeng Package
Printing Co., Ltd. The acquisition was completed on 2 January 2018. Details of
such acquisition were set out in the announcements of the Company dated
22 September 2017 and 30 November 2017 and the circular of the Company
dated 8 December 2017.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND EMPLOYEE
INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 2,249 full time employees in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments and
employee share-based compensation benefits) amounted to approximately
HK$343 million (2016: HK$389 million) for the year. All full time salaried
employees, except for factory workers and contract employees, are being
paid on a monthly basis, plus a discretionary performance bonus. Factory
workers are being remunerated based on a basic wage plus production
incentive. The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance related basis
within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system. In
addition to salaries, the Group provides staff benefits including medical
insurance and contributions to staff’s provident fund. Share options, awards
and bonuses are also available to employees of the Group at the discretion of
the Board and depending upon the financial performance of the Group.

22 SBERHERR H R 2 5 AMVIG Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The management had been focusing on cost cutting and productivity
improvement over the past few years to counteract the expected downturn
of the industry. Additional resources had also been deployed in research and
development so as to mitigate the pricing pressure brought forth by tenders.
These efforts had yielded results and will continue in the future.

The recent acquisition of Outstanding Viewpoint Limited had expanded the
Group’s footprints in China. The enlarged group will provide the scale to
leverage on costs. There will be more cross-divisional co-operation with the
central procurement of raw material, energy and other consumable to reduce
costs. This acquisition gave the Group an opportunity to serve Hongta Group
in the Yunnan Province. The management will continue to seek value-added
acquisitions to improve the Group's earnings and presence in the market.

The management is cautiously optimistic about the Group's prospects since
we consider (1) the tobacco industry will continue to be an important source
of income to the Central Government; (2) the outlook of the tobacco industry
is stable and the State Tobacco Monopoly Administration may revitalize
the sales of major tobacco brands; (3) the recent years’ cost cutting efforts
continue to yield results; and (4) there will be additional profit contribution
from Outstanding Viewpoint Limited and its subsidiaries and associates.

Management would like to take this opportunity to show our appreciation
to the great support from all our shareholders, suppliers and customers. We
would also like to extend our gratitude to all our staff for their continuous
dedication, commitment and contribution to the development of the Group
during this turbulent time. The Group will strive to overcome the difficulties
and challenges ahead to create higher return to our shareholders.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy
BREE L

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN FHITERE
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy BRELEE
aged 67, was appointed as Executive Director in January 2005 and was 675 R_ZEERF— AEZABRITES

appointed as the Executive Chairman of the Group in April 2006. He had also WARZEERNFHAEZTAAEBRHNITTE
been the Chief Executive Officer overseeing the overall management of the B WNMR_EZNFE+—A+NABRIETFE

Group and development of corporate policies and strategies for development FHTE  BEERAEHFEESTEIUALAA
of the business until 19 November 2009. With effect from 20 April 2010, BHEREBBREFBI2ER YEAR T
Mr. Chan was re-designated as Non-executive Chairman of the Board. Mr. —ZFENA -+ HEATASESES 2 IEMITE
Chan has been the Managing Director of Amcor Asia, part of Amcor Limited B @A —NMNAFRETRARAEER
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company, since 1995. Mr. Chan is B Amcor Limitedf% 8 A BlAmcor AsiaZ & =4
a Chartered Engineer (UK) with a Master of Business Administration degree KB 2 A BHREHF TREM AR
from University of Strathclyde in United Kingdom. He is a member of the University of StrathclydeFTa81% 2 T & B IE 1
Chartered Engineer Institution (UK). B FARBESTIEMAGZEE -
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ge Su

aged 61, was appointed as Executive Director in July 2009 and assumed
the position as President & Chief Executive Officer of the Company with
effect from 19 November 2009. Mr. Ge is currently the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ge has more than 24 years of experience in
the Chinese tobacco industry. He has a deep understanding and exposure to
the industry, and has developed a good working relationship with tobacco
monopoly authorities both at central and provincial levels. Mr. Ge assisted in
negotiation of three Leigh Mardon tobacco joint ventures in Qingdao, Beijing
and Kunming and sits on the respective boards in Qingdao and Beijing.
He has participated in many tobacco related projects including assisting a
multinational tobacco group in setting up a cigarette making joint venture
and developing a cigar cooperative project in China. Mr. Ge holds a degree
of Bachelor of Arts from Beijing Language Institute and a degree of Master of
Business Administration from China Europe Management Institute (currently
China Europe International Business School in Shanghai). Mr. Ge is also the
member of Risk Management Committee and Investment Committee of the

Company.

AND SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND SUBS|D|ARY MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Shun Fai
BrEE A

Mr. Liu Shun Fai BrEkE

aged 47, is currently the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary T RNEBZERMEERATIME - KB
of the Group. He is responsible for the accounting, finance and treasury EAREB e PENEBBE - B —H
function of the Group. He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong NZFEERBEERXKRE  AEBLHER
Kong in 1992 and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of @8 BAABAR _TNESTNETR
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Liu has more than 24 years of auditing and B RZZETLF)N\AMAKXRQAR @ BiEE

accounting experience. Before joining the Company in August 2007, Mr. Liu BETEESME LT AR ZYEREREER
had been the Financial Controller and the qualified accountant of two listed SEEIAF  MER —HMEEREMESRAT
companies in Hong Kong for 9 years and had also worked in an international BNAFE BEER-_ZE—RHF=-A=1+HEZ
accounting firm for 8 years. Mr. Liu was appointed as Executive Director of the FRARBIZHITES - BEENAARQRE
Company on 30 March 2015. Mr. Liu is also a member of Risk Management wEIBELZEEKE -

Committee of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Jerzy Czubak

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
BF  SREEELMBAREEEBRMN

Mr. Jerzy Czubak
Jerzy Czubak5t &

FHITES

Jerzy Czubak %t &

aged 59, has more than 33 years of operations experience, of which more 595 MAEBB=ZtT=ZFEELKR iR
than 18 years have been working with Amcor Tobacco Packaging. Mr. Czubak i@ + J\ & fEAmcor Tobacco PackagingT fE ©
has assisted Amcor group of companies in the setting up and management CzubakZe A BIAMcorE B R R E B A RES -
of production plants in Poland, Ukraine, Russia and various investment SRBhEHER CEETR - N RBOMNZ E1%
projects in Europe. He is at present the President of the tobacco packaging & IE B o B Al Czubakit & J5Amcor Limited
business of Amcor Limited. Mr. Czubak holds a Master of Art degree from K& &R I 2 8 o Czubakst £ B K
University of Lodz in Poland and a Master of Business Administration degree B University of LodzX 2218 T 87 » A K&
from University of Bristol in United Kingdom. Mr. Czubak was appointed as a University of Bristol T & %& 18 - 247 ° Czubak’t
Non-executive Director on 2 December 2011. Mr. Czubak is also the Chairman AR - —F+ - A _HEZTAHNTE
of the Risk Management Committee and a member of Investment Committee FoCzubak R EMAARRAIREBERZESE

of the Company.

FRRELZEEKE -
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AND SUBS|D|ARY MANAGEMENT

Mr. Michael Casamento
Michael Casamentof 4

Mr. Michael Casamento Michael Casamentoft 4

aged 47, was appointed as Non-executive Director in June 2016. He is 7 RZE-—RENABZERIEHRITE
currently the Chief Financial Officer of Amcor Limited. During March 2014 to = o # I/ ABAmcor LimitedZ B & B % B
September 2015, Mr. Casamento had also been the Vice President Corporate N_E—NFEF=ZFE-_ZT—RAFNAHMH
Finance in Amcor Limited. Prior to joining Amcor in March 2014, Mr. CasamentosCAE IR Amcor Limited PE(E1 Z 875
Casamento spent 6 years at SCA, a Swedish-listed global consumer goods and BlBE—8 - XM= —MF = B AAmcorA] -

paper company assuming the role of Chief Financial Officer for Asia Pacific Casamentot E B R E A (—KRImMl L/
and then the Americas. During 2012 to February 2014, Mr. Casamento was a 2HCHB R NARAR) TSNS - L1EETD
director of a public listed Company called Productos Familia S.A., which is a KEEEMNLEEFABE RE——F2

publicly traded company on the Colombia Stock Exchange. Mr. Casamento is —E—F = AHE - Casamento i ER—KA
a certified practicing accountant in Australia, and holds a degree in Bachelor R _E T A AlProductos Familia SA. (—K R S @
of Business (Accounting) from RMIT University, Melbourne and a degree in Lk B E R GETAREBE ZRR]) 2% -
Master of Business Administration from Swinburne University of Technology, Casamentofc £ ABMNAESETAD - WIFHEER
Australia. RERBTIREBTRE () B 26 KRIMNAT

BARHIA S T B IRE T 2T -
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

aged 73, is engaged principally in personal investment activities, including
advisory work on private equity. He was the Chairman of Stirling Coleman
Holdings Limited from 2001 to 2017. He was the Chairman of KPMG Peat
Marwick Singapore from 1984 to 1993 and concurrently the Chairman of
KPMG ASEAN and a member of KPMG International Board and its Executive
Committee. He served as the President of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore (now known as Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants) from 1982 to 1992. He was the Chairman of the Singapore
International Chamber of Commerce from 1995 to 1997. He was a founder
member and member of the Governing Council of the Singapore Institute
of Directors. He has also served as an Adjunct Professor in the School of
Accountancy and Business of The Nanyang Technological University. Mr.
Tay is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales
and he was awarded the First International Award by the Institute in 1988
for his contribution to the profession. He was conferred the Bintang Bakti
Masharakat (Public Service Star) by the President of the Republic of Singapore
in 1990. Mr. Tay is also a director of a few other companies. Mr. Tay was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in April 2006 and he
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration Committee, and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company.

AND SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, aged 55, obtained a Professional Diploma in
Accountancy in The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in 1987. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Au Yeung had worked for a number of years for
PriceWaterhouse and had acted as a financial manager of a listed company
and a major private company respectively in Hong Kong. He has been a
certified public accountant since 1994 and has over fifteen years’ experience
in auditing, finance and administration. He is now the director of Lau & Au
Yeung C.PA. Limited. Furthermore, Mr. Au Yeung was appointed on 11 March
2014 and is currently acting as an independent non-executive director of
Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 1305, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Au Yeung was also appointed
on 12 August 2016 and is currently acting as an independent non-executive
director of Man Shing Global Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8309, a
company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Au Yeung was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in May 2006 and he is
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee

of the Company.
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Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric
HERESLE

HEERE

aged 56, is currently the Managing Director of a business advisory company Sepk c BRIA—MEFREERRFBRK - 4
specialising in initial public offering, M&A and private equity investment. Mr. BEAMLERARENEERARNIIZES

Oh is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants BB o AL A AEREFARTHMAETZ
and he is also a member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants. BReEMTIRESMAere8 - Lt
Mr. Oh holds a diploma in business studies from Ngee Ann Polytechnic NEEELTETER I 2EENESEE -
with major in accountancy. Mr. Oh was appointed as an Independent Non- PHAEER-_TENFRAARZEAB I IEHNTT
executive Director in May 2006 and he is the Chairman of the Investment i% CEMAARRREZESRNCEE RS
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the SEXE URBERZES  FWZEEKLIE
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of %é/\ el E o

the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. Lui Yuen Ming, Bella

aged 45, is currently the Head of Internal Audit of the Group. She obtained
a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong,
a Degree in Law from the China University of Political Science and Law and
a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of Leicester,
United Kingdom. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She has more than 22 years of external and internal auditing
experience in an international accounting firm, a multi-national corporation
and listed companies in Hong Kong. She joined the Group in September
2007.

Ms. Ma Hui

aged 46, is currently the General Manager of Qingdao Plant. Ms. Ma Hui has
joined AMVIG since March 2012 and had worked with Amcor Group for 13
years. Ms. Ma graduated from Chemical Engineering College of Beijing Union

University and obtained a bachelor degree in Fine Chemical.

Mr. Xu Guo Min

aged 48, is currently the Vice President — Manufacturing and Technology
of the Group. His main duties include the alignment of the Group’s various
manufacturing assets, work safety and environment control, equipment
management and other related areas. Mr. Xu obtained his Master Degree in
Business Administration from Kunming University of Science and Technology
and has over 17 years' experience in the printing industry. Between 1995 and
August 2007, Mr. Xu had been working as a Chief Controller of Production
Department of Yunnan Nine Nine Color Printing Co., Ltd. He has joined
Dongguan KWG since November 2007 and was appointed as General
Manager in January 2010. Mr. Xu was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of
both Dongguan KWG and Kunming Plant in January 2013 to January 2017.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zhu Wen lJia, Vicky

aged 41, is currently the Vice President — Human Resources and
Administration of the Group. She holds a Master Degree in Logistics
Management from the University of Sydney, Australia. Ms. Zhu joined AMVIG
Group since October 2009 and had worked for regional Airlines as executive
of customer service. Her duties cover all areas related to human resources
and administration including, but not limited to identifying, evaluating,
and resolving human relations, employee morale, work performance, and

organizational productivity concerns.

Mr. Zhuang Yan

aged 46, is currently Vice President — Business Development, is responsible for
the Company'’s in organic growth and supporting strategic development. Mr.
Zhuang also overseeing the operation of both Dongguan KWG and Kunming
Plant. Mr. Zhuang joined AMVIG Group since May 2015 and has more than
23 years of experience working with several multinational companies, both
in China and the United States. Most recently, he had been working in Philip
Morris International from 2003 to 2014. Mr. Zhuang holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from Thunderbird School of Global Management and
a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Management Engineering from Southeast

University in Nanjing.

SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
Mr. Guan Shao Kun

aged 43, is currently the General Manager of Dongguan KWG. Mr. Guan
graduated from Yunnan Provincial Light Industry College in 1994. Between
1994 and 2000, Mr. Guan had been working as Chief Operator of Gravure
Printing Press in both Yunnan Tobacco Materials Company and Yunnan
Leigh-Mardon Packaging Co., Ltd. Between 2000 and 2003, he had been
working as Head of Printing Section in New Toyo (Viet) Paper Product Co.,
Ltd. Between 2003 and 2012, he has been working as Manager of Gravure
Section, Head of Technical and Production Department and Deputy General
Manager in Kunming Plant. In January 2013, he was appointed as General

Manager of Dongguan KWG.
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Mr. Li Ru He

aged 50, is currently the Executive General Manager of Hangzhou Weicheng
and Vice President of the Group. He graduated from Xiamen University, Fujian
and obtained a bachelor degree in Biology, and qualified as Economist and
Engineer. He joined Hangzhou Weicheng in 1997 and was promoted to

Executive General Manager in 2010.

Mr. Song Wei

aged 44, is currently the Executive General Manager of Beijing Plant and Vice
President of the Group. He graduated from Beihang University and obtained a
bachelor degree in Business English. He joined Beijing Plant in 1998 and was

promoted to Executive General Manager in 2015.

Mr. Xue Hui Lin

aged 55, is currently the General Manager of Qingdao Shuncheng Plant.
He majored in Industrial Enterprises and graduated from Jiangsu Radio and
Television University in 1986. He has joined Qingdao Shuncheng Plant as
Deputy General Manger in March 2011 and promoted to General Manager in
2015.

Mr. Zhu Tian Shou

aged 57, is a founder and the General Manager of Xi'an Plant and Vice
President of the Group. He holds a Textile Engineer diploma from Xi'an
Polytechnic University and attended master of business administration
course in 2003-2004. Before joining the Group, he was a senior engineer and
a member of assessment committee in People’s Liberation Army’s (“PLA")
General Logistics Department. He was also the Head of a PLA Factory and

General Manager of Xi'an Great Sky Science & Technology Co., Ltd..

34 SERHERHBR 2 8 AMVIG Holdings Limited

BT R

Byl e

505% © MARMIMERHRITALERAEEZ
BlBE  REXNEREFMASLEMER B
BERELEM - WERKEMM TIZABE - &
R—ANEFMATRIMNER - IR -F—TF
B RBITRERE -

RETE
4455 BRI R BERITREIERNEE 2 &

BE - WEENIETMEMRAREEEHLEE
¥ EBEBELEM - RR—AANFWALR

BE - YR T —REETRAITELE -
BESMELE
555% 0 MR E BIEBME BEE - —NLURF

BEERNIHERERABLERIXECELYE
BREX -FR_ZE—F=ANASBIEH
WEILFRRLEE  WR=_FS—AFEHA
HRREIR o

RREBEE

575% © mPIR R 2 Bl A R AR IR A R AR &
@ZEIJi@ﬁ cREBENALXIIRRBHEITIE
BEX -R_TE=FE_TTNFELNIHE
i@ﬁﬁiaﬁi o EIMAAREEA - HEERBEA
RERE (FEARBRE]) @RYF2RT
A BERHHRNEEE  PEARBRE
TRMERALZ AR KRN ERARBLE -



O g

AL
i

:II | ,l llll |l|||||||||l " | I I

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Jin

aged 57, was one of the founding members of Qiaotong Plant. He is currently
the vice chairman of Qiaotong Plant, and is responsible for investment
management and setting up of new production facilities and branches.
Mr. Zhou is a senior economist in the PRC and graduated from the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences with a master degree in Commerce and
Economics. Prior to joining the Qiaotong Plant, he was engaged in academic
and research activities with a school and a governmental bureau respectively

in Yunnan Province of the PRC.

Mr. Zhang Jing

aged 57, has been employed by Qiaotong Plant since its inception in 1993
and is currently the general manager. He is responsible for the overall
management of Qiaotong Plant. Mr. Zhang graduated from the People’s

University of China with a master degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Tao Fei Hu

aged 63, is the general manager of Qiaofeng Plant. Prior to his appointment
with Qiaofeng Plant in January 2010, he was the deputy general manager and
a founding member of Qiaotong Plant. Mr. Tao has over 40 years of working

experience in production and marketing management in the PRC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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INTRODUCTION

As a publicly listed company, the Board of AMVIG recognises its
responsibilities to comply with appropriate corporate governance standards
and guidelines. Therefore, we are committed to providing clear accountability,
proper management of the Company’s asset, enhancing the Company'’s
reputation and standard in the community and supporting the achievement
of its environmental, safety, social and other obligations so as to protect the

long-term value to our shareholders, customers and employees.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

This report summarises the Company’s corporate governance practices and
structures that were in place during the financial year ended 31 December
2017.

BOARD MATTERS
Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

The Board directs and supervises the Company's affairs in a responsible and
effective manner. Each Director has a duty to execute his actions in the best
interests of the Company. The Board is responsible for the Company's overall
strategic direction, key operational initiatives, major funding and investment
proposals. It is also charged with monitoring the operational and financial
position and performance, as well as corporate governance practices. Where
appropriate, the Board is obliged to approve any key executive appointments
and succession planning. The Board also provides leadership and guidance
to management. The Company has in place financial authorisation and
approval limits for capital expenditures as well as acquisitions and disposal
of investments. Within these guidelines, the Board approves transactions
above certain thresholds. The Board also approves the annual budget and the
financial results of the Group and various Board committees were formed to
assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities. The Directors may have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company
with a view to ensure that the board procedures, and all applicable rules and

regulations, are followed.
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In addition, the Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the Company's expenses.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to

discharge their duties.

The Board meets periodically at least four times a year and also meets as
warranted by particular circumstances outside the scheduled meetings.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, a total of five Board
meetings were held. The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and general meetings, as well as the frequency of

such meetings, are disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

During the year, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates
Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance

and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Company has organised a 2 hours in-house workshop
conducted by a professional firm for all Directors of the Company namely
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy, Mr. Ge Su, Mr. Liu Shun Fai, Mr. Jerzy Czubak,
Mr. Michael Casamento, Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith, Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis
and Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric. The workshop covered topics including IT
Security Awareness. In addition to formal workshop, all Directors namely
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy, Mr. Ge Su, Mr. Liu Shun Fai, Mr. Jerzy Czubak,
Mr. Michael Casamento, Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith, Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis
and Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric developed themselves through (i) conducting
focused discussion on issues relating to the business and operations of the
Company at committee meetings; (i) research, reading and study of relevant
regulations and standards; and (iii) attending relevant courses, seminars
and talks in order to strengthen the skills and knowledge relevant for their

respective roles.

All Directors have provided the Company with their respective training

records in compliance with Code A.6.5 of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE

The Board now comprises eight Directors including a Non-Executive

Chairman, two Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs"), and

AR R

ExgdEmRES

FR -EFEHN\REFHAR BRE—BIFH
TER MBRTES  MBAFNTES ([3F

three Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The composition of the HMITEF])  R=RBYIENTESE ([BIE
Board and representation on Board committees are set out below: HITEEF|) EEFETZHARNMNEFEZTE T ZH
AT
Length of
Title Name Position Gender Age services
By HE B ]| Fie BR#% & 5
Non-Executive Chairman: Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy Chairman of the Board Male 67 13 years
FERITESE - BIREEEE BESTE ES 134
Executive Directors: Mr. Ge Su Chief Executive Officer Male 61 8 years
WITEE Bkt BEEHITE ES 84F
Mr. Liu Shun Fai Chief Financial Officer Male 47 3 years
R A BEEHBE = 3%
Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Jerzy Czubak Chairman of Risk Management Male 59 6 years
Committee
EMITES - Jerzy Czubak%t 4 EREEEZEEF)E EE 6%F
Mr. Michael Casamento Male 47 1 year
Michael Casamento %t 4 e 14
Independent Non-Executive  Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith Chairman of Audit Committee Male 73 12 years
Directors: and Nomination Committee
B IFRITES ¢ BRESEA EREZEERIEEZEETE 5 124
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis Chairman of Remuneration Male 55 12 years
Committee
Bl RESE L FNEE ST/ ES 124
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric Chairman of Investment Male 56 12 years
Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee
RERERE REZEEREXER = 126
ZE2TE
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Our Directors are experienced in a range of corporate and industry expertise
such as accounting, finance and business and operation management. The
diversity of the Directors’ experience provides useful exchange of ideas and

views to ensure that decisions are made with a balanced judgement.

The Company has formal letters of appointment with each of the Directors.
Given their nature of duties, executive Directors do not have a fixed term of
appointment. All NEDs (including INEDs) of the Company are appointed for a
term of two years from the date of their respective appointments/renewal. All
Directors are subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company but eligible for re-election

for re-appointment.

The Nomination Committee reviews the independence of each Director. It
considers a Director as independent if he has no relationship with the Group
or its officers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere,
with the exercise of the Director’s independent business judgment in the

best interests of the Company.

Other than Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy, Mr. Jerzy Czubak and Mr. Michael
Casamento, who are senior management of Amcor group of companies,
there is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship

among the other Directors.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its INEDs an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be

independent.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 24 to 31 of this

annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are segregated and not
performed by the same person. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership of the Board and the formulation of overall strategic development
of the Group, while the Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for the

day-to-day management of the Group's business.

During the year, Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy is the Chairman and Mr. Ge Su is
the Chief Executive Officer.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Liu Shun Fai. He has fulfilled the
requirement under Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an employee
of the Company, the company secretary supports the Board, ensures good
information flow within the Board and Board policy and procedures are
followed; advises the Board on governance matters, facilitates induction and,
monitors the training and continuous professional development of Directors.
He has attained not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2017. His biography is set out in the "Profile of
Directors, Senior Management and Subsidiary Management” section of this

annual report.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses candidates for directorships
(including Executive Directors) with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board before making recommendations to the Board. The Nomination
Committee normally considers the current composition of the Board, the
skills and experience required, and ensures that the Board has an appropriate
balance of independent Directors as well as diversity with the right profile of

expertise, skills, attributes and ability.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Investment Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee to assist the Board in the execution of its duties. In
considering the composition of the different committees, several key factors
are taken into account, such as equitable allocation of responsibilities among
Board members, promotion of active participation and maximization of the

effectiveness of different committees.
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(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three INEDs: Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith
(Chairman), Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wabh, Ellis and Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which have been revised
to include review of the risk management system as required by the CG
Code with effect from 1 January 2016, are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The main responsibilities of the

Audit Committee include the following:

- assists the Board in discharging its statutory responsibilities on

financial and accounting matters;

- reviews the audit plans and reports of the external auditors and
internal auditors and considers the effectiveness of the actions

taken by management on the auditors' recommendations;

- appraises and reports to the Board on the audits undertaken by the

external auditors and the adequacy of disclosure of information;

- reviews the cost effectiveness of the audit and the independence

and objectivity of the external auditors;

- reviews the systems of financial control, internal control and risk

management on their effectiveness; and

- reviews connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions, as defined under the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. It met with
the Company’s internal and external auditors to discuss the results of
their respective examinations and their evaluation of the Company’s
systems of internal control and risk management. It has authority to
investigate any matters within its terms of reference and has full access
to and cooperation from management, in addition to its direct access to
the external auditors. The external auditors, in the course of conducting
their normal audit procedures on the statutory financial statements of
the Company, also considered the Company’s internal controls relevant
to the Company's preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design their audit procedures. If required,
the Audit Committee has authority to seek external resources to enable

it to discharge its functions properly.
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The Audit Committee has also reviewed the interim financial statements
and the annual financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2017 and for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
respectively, as well as the auditors’ reports thereon. Any connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions of the Group
during the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee; in cases
of practical difficulties, the Audit Committee provides guidance to
management to assist in their resolution. Appropriate disclosure is made

in the annual report.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the

external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the three INEDs: Mr. Au Yeung
Tin Wah, Ellis (Chairman), Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Oh Choon Gan,

Eric.

The key responsibilities of and the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2017 are stated in
the Remuneration Report set out in this report on pages 54 to 63.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The main
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

- makes recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and

structure for all Directors and senior management remuneration;

reviews and approves the management’s remuneration proposal

with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

reviews and approves compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms

and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and

reviews and approves compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with relevant contractual terms and are otherwise

reasonable and appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year.
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(3) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises the three INEDs: Mr. Tay Ah Kee,
Keith (Chairman), Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis and Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric.

The Nomination Committee’s main function is to ensure that the
size, structure and diversity of the Board are adequate for effective
discussions and decision-making. It also has the responsibility that the
Board has an appropriate balance of independent Directors, with a mix
of business experience in relevant disciplines. According to the board
diversity policy adopted by the Nomination Committee during the year,
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service etc.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service etc. The final decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee

are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include the

following:

- reviews and recommends to the Board the retirement and
re-election of Directors in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association;

- reviews the size, structure and diversity of the Board to ensure that
the Board has an appropriate balance of independent Directors
and to ensure an appropriate balance of culture, expertise, skills,
attributes and ability among the Directors;

- reviews the independence of Directors; and
- reviews the composition of the boards of subsidiary and associated
companies and where appropriate, provides guidance on the

appointment of suitable Directors to those companies.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year to

perform the above responsibilities.
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(4) Investment Committee ) REZES
The Investment Committee comprises Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric KELZEEeKERREBYIIERITTESHE
(Chairman), an INED, Mr. Jerzy Czubak, a NED and Mr. Ge Su, an Executive ERE (EF)  FERITEFerzy Czubaks
Director. ERBITESZBEEHLLE -
The main responsibilities of the Investment Committee include the KELZEBe T BB EBRENTNSE
following:
- considers and approves strategic and portfolio investments and — BRRHEETRERBAZKREIE
divestments within certain prescribed thresholds; BENBEERERBESIE
—  reviews the Company’s investment and treasury policies; and — BEAARAZEREBRREBEE
K
- manages the Company’s Group’s assets and liabilities in accordance - RRBREFEIHREMIESEEARARNR
with the policies and directives of the Board. RAEEzEERARE -
The Investment Committee held one meeting during the year. KREZBERERNRITT —REE -
(5) Risk Management Committee () BaEEEES
The Risk Management Committee comprises Mr. Jerzy Czubak EREREEZEENE BIEFNITE S erzy
(Chairman), a NED, Mr. Ge Su and Mr. Liu Shun Fai, both being Executive CzubakL £ (£F) - ITEFEHLAENR
Directors. BB A o
The main responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee include ERERZEE T ERERIEATSRIE
the following:
- oversees the establishment, implementation, and ongoing review — ERANGABREEZHG - BB
of the Company’s risk management; NRAFERE
- reviews the overall risk management system and process and makes — BANEEERREERS AR NR
recommendations on changes as and when considered appropriate, EBAEBZBRTIKEEBBRER X
having regard to costs and benefits; and Mtz FELEBAREZHBES
53
- reviews the Company’s material risk exposures and evaluates — RFEARFTZEAREKFE  FEE
the adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating measures BEEGmHERCEEEREN
implemented by management. M o
The Risk Management Committee held one meeting during the year. EBREREESNFANRITT —IAEE
The Risk Management Report is set out in this report on pages 64 to 69. B EIRHEHNANREF4TE69E ©
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(6) Corporate Governance Committee (6) LEEREER

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises the three INEDs: Mr. TEBERLZECRRE 2B IFHTE

Oh Choon Gan, Eric (Chairman), Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Au Yeung E:HEESRE (XFE)  BELLE LB

Tin Wah, Ellis. REFRAE o

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee CEERLTES T EREBETIEE

include the following:

- develops, reviews and monitors the Company's policies and — BT R NERAQAGBECES
practices on corporate governance and compliance with legal and AURBTEEREEZERNEER
regulatory requirements and make recommendations to the Board; B UMESSELERRS

- develops, reviews and monitors the code of conduct applicable to — BT R REREANEENES
employees and Directors; By <FAI

- reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional — B EERANINEELIAETERE
development of Directors and senior management of the Company; IR REEEERRE &
and

- reviews the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and — BEARRENRECEER/RFRTAZ
respective disclosure in the interim and annual reports of the BFURARRARHRHEFEREZE
Company. RSP HE o

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the TPEERZERFREITT —REBUE

year to perform the above responsibilities. TEMBE -

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

EENMeBRERETENSHEES N AR
BS54 638 2 FHENERE -

The remuneration policy and basis of determining the remuneration of the
Directors are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 54 to 63 in this

report.

SREEBKEBRE_T—tF+_A=1+—
BIEFENESREBEDTEN TR

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for

the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration bands M E Number of persons

A
Up to HK$1,000,000 B3 1,000,00078 7T 3
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T 2 2,000,000/ 7T 2
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest

paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules are

set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING

The attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board and the

Board committees, and general meeting during the financial year ended 31

December 2017 was as follows:

BT R

RELTHRUBARBEERESTRAL RS HM
BENMESNEMFE - SRPHERERME -

EEEREERES
RAEZHERR
HE-FT+tF+t-A=+-RLBBEES

%%ﬁﬁé%@&%%é% @ MRERA
g2BERMT

SRUARKR

Risk Corporate
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Management Investment Governance General
Board Committee Committee ~ Committee Committee  Committee  Committee  Meeting*
BRER TEER
EZ2 BENZEE FMzZEE REZEe £E® REZEE ZE® REA®:
Number of Meetings Held 8T8 E N H 5 3 1 1 1 1 1 2
Non-executive Chairman HHTEE
Mr.Chan Chew Keak, Billy — SEREESEE 5/5 - - - - - - 22
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Liu Shun Fai BRBtE 5/5 - - - 11 i - b))
Mr. Ge Su EHAE 5/5 - - i 11 12
Non-Executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubakit 4 5/5 - - - ”n n - 172
Mr. Michael Casamento Michael
Casamentot £ 5/5 - - - - - - 12
Independent Non-Executive BV HTEZE
Directors
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BHEREE 5/5 3/3 11 11 - - 11 12
Mr. AuYeung Tin Wah, Ellis — BUERE R £ 5/5 33 1/1 1/1 - - 1/1 112
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric REERE 5/5 33 11 i - i 1 12

*  being annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2017 and

extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 28 December 2017.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. Such risk
management and internal control systems are designed for managing risks
rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board is also committed to managing
and overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis, in order to

safeguard the shareholders’investment and the Group's assets.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group through Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee on an ongoing basis and did not identify any
significant irregularity and deficiency. The Board concluded that the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group are effective and

adequate.

The Board considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit

and financial reporting function are adequate.

(@) Overview of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
Risk Management System

The Group's Risk Management Framework facilitates a structured
model on the risk management processes in identification, evaluation,
mitigation and prevention, reporting, as well as monitoring of all risks
identified in respect of major business processes. For details of the risks
that are identified and how the Group manages those risks, please refer

to Risk Management Report of this Annual Report.

Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing the risk
management functions of the Group and evaluating the effectiveness of
the risk management system. Operations management is responsible for
day-to-day monitoring and taking necessary measures to mitigate the
risks. Management regularly performs corporate risk assessment and any
major risk issues are reported to the Risk Management Committee at its

meetings.
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Internal Control System

The Group's internal control system comprises control environment,
risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, as
well as monitoring activities. The Group has established various policies
and procedures which are intended to safeguard the Group's assets and
resources against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, ensure transactions are executed
in accordance with management’s authorization and ensure accounting
records are reliable for preparing financial information internally and
publicly.

The Audit Committee has reviewed, with the assistance of the internal
and external auditors, the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group. Management has used its best endeavors to ensure that
there were no material internal control deficiencies, weaknesses or areas

of concern identified which might affect shareholders.

Management of Internal Audit Function

The Group has utilized its Internal Audit Department to assist the Board
to independently review the Group's internal control system throughout
the year.

Internal Audit Charter

The mission, objectives, accountability, responsibility, independence and
authority of the Internal Audit Department are clearly stated in a written
Internal Audit Charter, which is approved and periodically reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

Reporting Structure

The Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, although it also reports administratively to the Chief
Executive Officer. The Internal Audit Department brings appropriate
matters identified during the course of audits to the Audit Committee’s
attention and also has the right to consult the Audit Committee without
reference to the management. This reporting structure allows the
Internal Audit Department to maintain its independence.

Internal Audit Plan

An annual internal audit plan for the Group, which is reviewed by the
Audit Committee, is formulated based on the results of the annual
assessment of risks and prior reviews of internal control. The Internal
Audit Department also conducts other projects and investigations as
may be required.
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Ongoing Internal Control Review

The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk and control based audit
approach in assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
internal control system on an on-going basis. Audit scope is mainly
determined by internal control self-assessment questionnaire as
completed by auditees. Internal Audit Department performs operational
and financial reviews aiming to ensure that all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls are in place and
functioning effectively. Significant internal control issues as identified are
escalated to senior management for rectification. Major audit findings
and follow up of recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee

at its meetings.

(c) Controls on Inside Information

In respect of procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, a mechanism has been established
to identify, analyse and disclose any inside information with reference
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission. Besides, the Group’s employee
handbook contains the general prohibition from disclosing such
information to persons who do not have a demonstrable need to know
the information. Group staff is required to acknowledge the receipt and

comply with all the contents contained in the employee handbook.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period to ensure
such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s
financial statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgment and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 85 to 90 of the annual report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

RSM Hong Kong has been re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor
by shareholders at the 2017 Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. They are primarily responsible for
providing audit services in connection with the annual consolidated financial
statements. During the year, the total remuneration paid and payable to
the Company’s external auditor amounted to approximately HK$4.4 million
of which approximately HKS$3.7 million was incurred for statutory audit and
approximately HK$0.7 million was incurred for non-audit services.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes in engaging in regular, effective and fair
communication with shareholders and is committed to conveying important
and relevant information to shareholders on a timely basis.

The Company is mindful to ensure that information is made publicly available
on a timely basis. A Shareholders’ communication policy was adopted by
the Company to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
encourage them to communicate actively with the Company. The Board will
review the policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

Disclosure of information is made by way of publishing announcements,
notices, circulars and financial reports through the website of the Stock
Exchange, press releases, general meetings, as well as the corporate website
(www.amvig.com) which has a dedicated investor relations section.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There had been no changes in the Articles of Association of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with the Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionists by the Company.
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Shareholders may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director of
the Company. If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to be elected as
a Director, the following documents must be validly served to the Company
at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 601-602,
6th Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong: (i)
his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at the general meeting;
and (i) a notice executed by the nominated candidate of his/her willingness
to be appointed together with his/her information as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, within the period commencing on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and ending on the date falling seven days after the dispatch of

the said notice of the general meeting.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar: Tricor Investor Services Limited

at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Other enquiries or comments raised by any Shareholder can be mailed to
the Board at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 601-602, 6th Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong, through the “IR Contact” under Investor Relations section in the
Company's official website (www.amvig.com), or sent through fax number at
(852) 2970 7070, or through the Company’s hotline at (852) 2970 7000.

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than that required under
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of
them confirms that he has complied in full with the Model Code regarding

Directors’ securities transactions for the year.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

INTRODUCTION

As always, AMVIG seeks to ensure the levels of our remuneration are sufficient
to attract and retain high-calibre top management and marketing talents.
2017 was another uncertain year for the Chinese tobacco packaging industry
due to the smoking ban and change of health warning labels. Nevertheless,
we should continue to invest in our people and to implement appropriate
incentive scheme so as to maintain the stability of our management and
marketing talents. This is one of the key factors in achieving AMVIG's

long-term business success and the creation of value for our shareholders.

This remuneration report, which has been reviewed and approved by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, explains the Company’s policy on
the remuneration of Chairman, Executive Directors and NEDs, together with
the details of Directors’ remuneration packages for the financial year 2017 as

set out on pages 54 to 63.

1. KEY DEVELOPMENT

Regarding the remuneration to the senior executives, the Board has

taken the following steps during the year:

1. NEDs'fees were maintained the same as last year.

2. Bonuses were paid to the head office management based
principally on the delivery of outperformance against objective

benchmarks.

3. Incentive bonuses were paid by reference to key performance
indicators ("KPI") set for plant management. The KPI is basically set
to measure the performance of the management based on the
return on fixed assets employed, percentage of actual results over

budget and last year results.

4. Basic salaries were adjusted basically to reflect the effect of
inflation, work performance and the change in employment market
conditions.

Full details of the Chairman's, Executive Directors’ and NEDs’

remuneration are set out in the report that follows.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

s
2. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 2. FMEES
The Remuneration Committee has been set up since 2006 to review HFMEEeg ST NFRY  UEiTS
both the remuneration structure and package of the senior management REEREBNIFRITES ZHREREFS -
and NEDs.
Tasks B 7%
The committee’s tasks are: ZEEWBA
—  to review and determine, on behalf of the Board of Directors, the — RXEFeRIMEITTRABZH
policies for executives' remuneration and to report on those to the B - W ER GRS E/EEE
shareholders;
—  to revise and recommend to the Board, the remuneration system for — I RmEEeRZIFENITESTH
the NEDs; I s
-~ to monitor the implementation of remuneration policies being — ERARAFMEATHMERRZHNTE
applied by the Company; and oo Rk
- to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration — FBENEERSREEENEMNEF
packages of individual Directors and senior management. REESEHHERERS -
The present remuneration packages of AMVIG have been compared FWEZEEe D REHEIRIRE 2 EF 8
with the prevailing market practice in Hong Kong and corresponding HEBRTTEERETLER  TERE
recommendations were proposed to the Board of Directors for their ECRTHEBEERUAREZEELILE -

consideration and approval.
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Constitution and operation

The committee comprises solely INEDs and is chaired by Mr. Au Yeung
Tin Wah, Ellis. The other members are Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith and Mr. Oh
Choon Gan, Eric.

ED ST

ZEEKBEEEBIIFNTES ¥
REGRELRE  HMREBRBELE
RpERERLE -

The committee held one Meeting in the period under review. There was ZEROBEHERTT —Xez - 28
a full attendance record of all members. The committee has reported to KEHELHFEFEE®E TESCNENX
the Board on its activities after each meeting. The terms of reference of SR ThRESeREEEEHEBE ZTES
the committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and 2 B e 0 [ A A B XS BT N2 AN R B A ARk 2
the Company. 7 -

The committee is accountable to the shareholders through its annual TWEEFMMES  ZESHELFEBTFER
report on Directors’ remuneration and the opinions of shareholders are ARERE  TEZERREHERRZE
taken into account when making decisions. 8o

REMUNERATION POLICY

The main elements of the Company’s remuneration policies are:

no individual should determine his or her own remuneration.

remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies with

whom the Company competes for human resources.

remuneration should reflect performance, complexity and

responsibility so as to attract and retain high calibre individuals.

motivate Directors to achieve challenging performance levels.

align executive rewards with shareholders’ value.

recognise both individual and corporate achievement.
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REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES FOR EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS IN 2017

The committee has followed the remuneration policy and system
adopted in 2007 on proposing remuneration packages of Executive

Directors for the Board’s consideration and approval.

The committee seeks to ensure linking the remuneration for top
management with their performance and the Company's operating
results by structuring remuneration packages to include both fixed and

variable components.

The following key principles guide its policy:

- policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors will be
determined and regularly reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee which will set the tone for the remuneration of other

senior executives.

- the remuneration structure will support and reflect AMVIG's stated

purpose to maximise long-term shareholders’ value.

- the remuneration structure will reflect a fair system of rewards for

the participants.

- the remuneration will be based on the fixed compensation,
performance bonus and pension arrangement. The performance
bonus will be linked to the achievement of demanding
performance targets that are independently set and reflect the

creation of long-term shareholders’ value.

- a performance share scheme will be developed in order to align

executives'and shareholders’interests.

- certain KPIs, which can be quantitative and qualitative, will be
set objectively by the management within a framework that
is approved by the Remuneration Committee to evaluate the

performance of Directors.

- remuneration policy and practices will be as transparent as possible,

both for participants and shareholders.
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The remuneration package consists of fixed compensation, performance
bonus and pension arrangement in which the performance bonus is
suggested to play a more significant part in individual rewards as part
of the policy to attract, motivate and retain high performing individuals.
The three components of Executive Directors’ remuneration are as

follows:

I.  Fixed Compensation

Fixed compensation includes basic salary, allowances and
benefits-in-kind. Base salary and allowances are set and reviewed
annually for each Director taking into consideration the competitive
market position, market practice, and the Company's and

individual's performance.

Il. Annual Incentive Program

The levels of performance bonus are set by the Remuneration
Committee. No Executive Directors serve on the committee. The
annual incentive can be paid in form of performance bonus as

determined by the Board.

lll. Long-term Incentive

The Executive Directors are recommended to take part in the
long-term Incentive Plan (“LTIP"). The LTIP will be designed to
align the interests of the Executive Directors with those of the
shareholders by an award in the form of performance shares that is

linked with shareholders’ value.
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5. REMUNERATION FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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REMUNERATION REPORT

5. ITESEZME
MARRRTEELN 2 MEHFIMT :

The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors of the Company was

shown below:

B S

Retirement
For the year ended Salaries and Discretionary  benefit scheme
31 December 2017 Fees other benefit bonuses contributions Total
BE-E-tF Fek BIRER
TZA=+—-HLEE ko HigFl BEREA s @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
Executive Directors WTES
Mr. Ge Su BHha - 3,885 1,009 3 4897
Mr. Liu Shun Fai BrsE - 2,664 666 18 3348
- 6,549 1,675 21 8,245
Retirement
For the year ended Salaries and Discretionary  benefit scheme
31 December 2016 Fees other benefit bonuses contributions Total
BE-ZT—KF ek RREN
+-A=+—HLEFE ik HiigF ByIETEAT AR Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Chan Sai Wai® FER {2 52 42O - 11,775 15,000 13 26,788
Mr. Ge Su BEEE - 3513 524 2 4039
Mr. Ng Sai Kit? RAREED - - - - -
Mr. Liu Shun Fai gt - 2,592 648 18 3,258
- 17,880 16,172 33 34,085
Notes: fizE -

(1) Mr.Chan Sai Wai has resigned as Executive Director on 25 September 2016.

(2)  Mr. Ng Sai Kit has resigned as Executive Director on 21 January 2016.

REEEEN T —

BF-

REREER T —

BF-

NENAZ+HEABERT

NE-AZ+—BEERT
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S
6. REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES FOR 6. FUTEE_FT—LtFZME
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS IN 2017 EA|
The existing remuneration packages and policies which are based on RITHFMEFBERRE KRR SESITE
the qualification, professional experiences, time spent and workload EMER  BELR RAKEBRIEES
of individual NED have proved to be fair, attractive and effective in the BT BEEFREZHALTF - AR5
past years and therefore, the same policies and principles were adopted HWEREM AR Bt FEEFMNA
continually in 2017, FIEER K RE -
7. REMUNERATION FOR NON-EXECUTIVE 7. kRTESZHME
DIRECTORS
The fees paid to each of our NEDs for their services on the Group and, MEIEMTEERAAEEL (WEH) 5
as applicable, on its Board committees are set out below. The fees were ZE@RHEREMABESE N 20 ST
proposed by Remuneration Committee and reviewed by the Board of MTeMmeHFMEESEHE  WEL
Directors. EEG9B% -
Retirement
For the year ended Salaries and Discretionary  benefit scheme
31 December 2017 Fees other benefit bonus  contributions Total
BE-Z—tF FeK BB
TZA=+—HLEE ik HAi3E R BETEAL BE LA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Non-executive Directors FEHTES
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy DRGSR E 491 - - - 491
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BRE AL 905 _ _ _ 905
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis B5RELE 875 - - - 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric HEELE 873 - _ _ 873
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubak 5t 4 376 - - - 376
Mr. Michael Casamento Michael Casamento
v 376 - - - 376

3,896 - -

3,896

62 SBERHERR H R 2 5 AMVIG Holdings Limited



Ll i T TR

REMUNERATION REPORT

RS
Retirement
benefit
For the year ended Salaries and Discretionary scheme
31 December 2016 Fees other benefit bonus contributions Total
BE-T—XR"F+t-A=+—HLk ek RREA
FE ik H fth 18 7 ByIETEAT SHEIER ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET FAET
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy LREEE 491 - - - 491
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BE%E 905 - - - 905
Mr. Au Yeung B RELE
Tin Wah, Ellis 875 - - - 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric HEELE 873 - - - 873
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubakdt 4 376 - - - 376
Mr. Michael Casamento " Michael Casamento
A0 188 - - - 188
3,708 - - - 3,708
Note: MisE -
(1) Mr. Michael Casamento has been appointed as NED on 24 June 2016. (1) Michael Casamentofe R ZF —/XF/XAZ+ MO
AEZERIENITES -
= ==
8. CONTINUED SCRUTINY AND DISCLOSURE 8. BEEERKE
The Remuneration Committee remains committed to continued FHMEZBEDBNBEEERMKE - 1
scrutiny of remuneration levels, and to high standards of disclosure and U AR A Rk K= B AR KE -

transparency to shareholders on such matters.
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
R EIRWwE

INTRODUCTION

It is vital for AMVIG to maintain a sound framework to identify and manage
its risks. An effective risk management framework provides the Group with
a solid foundation for sustainable growth of business in this ever-changing
competition landscape. We have identified the following major risks that we

are facing and what measures we have in place to handle these risks:

1. MARKET RISK

Maintaining competitive advantage is critically important for the
Group's business due to the ongoing demand for new designs from
our customers. In order to maintain our product innovation spurred by
the changing customers preference, as well as the technical ability to
address changes in demand, we have deployed substantial investments
in our R&D capability over the years, such as the centralization of the
R&D centre and the establishment of specific production lines for
samplings, so as to help our customers to develop new products with
innovative designs to cater for the rapid changes in the tobacco market

landscape.
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2. OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of potential financial loss and/or business

instability arising from disasters such as fire, earthquake, floods and

hurricanes, failure in internal controls or operational processes, inability

to manage costs; to continue product development and innovation;

to hire and retain talent and the failures to comply with government

and environmental regulations. The Group has over the year made

progressive steps to manage such risks:

m

3)

Profit improvement program remains as our important tool for cost
reduction, productivity enhancement and pricing improvement
of our operations. The implementation of central purchasing and
automation of our work floor continue to work well to keep the
expenses to a minimum. The benchmarking system helps us to
compare operational performances effectively. The management
will conduct regular reviews of the data in order to improve

production efficiency and reduce wastages.

Continuous efforts are being made to standardize the production

on the shop floors and warehouse.

The Group’s loss time injuries were consistently maintained at a low
rate. A safety supervisory committee was in place to ensure that
our plants management has examined all workplace to identify and

eliminate existing or potential hazards.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK

68

The Group is exposed to various types of financial risks, including foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.
Details of the Group’s financial risk and the management of such risks

are outlined in note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.

(1) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has limited exposure to foreign currency risk at
operational level as only a minimal amount of business transactions
are denominated in currencies other than Renminbi, the functional

currency of the Company, and the respective group entities.

On the other hand, the Company has substantially all of its
borrowing denominated in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") which may

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The management is now looking at opportunities to enter into
more hedging instruments at an appropriate time so as to further

contain a substantial portion of the Group’s foreign currency risks.

As of 31 December 2017, if Renminbi had strengthened/weakened
by 8% against HKD with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been

approximately HK$94 million higher/lower than reported.

As of 31 December 2017, if Renminbi had strengthened/weakened
by 8% against HKD with all other variables held constant, the
Group's equity would have increased by HK$34 million/decreased

by HK$42 million as compared to reported.
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CREDIT RISK

The Group has no significant credit risk, which is primarily
attributable to stringent management of its trade receivables. In
addition to regular reviews of the recoverable amount of trade
receivables, the management has also placed strict controls over
working capital management of each operation. Such measures
enable the Group to shorten its working capital cycle and enhance

cash flows.

The counterparty risk is small as the Group's customers are mainly
state-owned tobacco groups, which according to the assessment of

the management are financially healthy.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with

exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

LIQUIDITY RISK

As at the end of 2017, the Group's gearing ratio was 36% which
is healthy and most of its borrowings were of long-term nature.
Taking into account the amount of cash on hand of HK$1.2 billion,
the Group's debt ratio is only 6%. The Group will continue its policy
to monitor the cash flows of the Group closely so that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash in the short and longer term to repay

bank loans when they fall due.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's bank deposits bear interest at fixed interest rates and

therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
variable-rate bank borrowings. With a stable outlook for interest
rates, the Group prefers to keep certain borrowings with variable
rates, rather than to enter into interest rate swaps, which fix the
interest at substantially higher rates. AMVIG considers that interest

rate risks are minimal.

FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial

position approximate their respective fair values.
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The Directors are pleased to submit the annual report of the Company
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) together with its audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 36

to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's turnover and contribution to the operating result for the year
is attributable to the printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
transfer papers and laser film. The analysis of the principal activities and
geographical location of the operations of the Group are set out in note 35

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 174.

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK7.6 cents per share (2016:
HK5.4 cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June 2017. The Board
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK7.3 cents per share
to the members of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 15 June 2018 in respect of the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: final dividend of HK2.2 cents per share and final

special dividend of HK1.1 cents per share).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance is set out as below:

Overview

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 12 to

15 of this annual report.

Key financial and business performance indicators

Details of the key financial and business performance indicators comprising
revenue growth, gross profit margin, product mix for turnover and gross
profit margin etc. are shown in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”and
“Management Discussion and Analysis”on pages 10 to 11 and pages 16 to 23

of this annual report respectively.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to promoting environmental protection and
pollution prevention and making improvements to the environment in
regions where we have our operations. We treat all relevant environmental
legislations and regulations as the minimum standard and seek to go above
and beyond this standard wherever possible, when it comes to environmental
protection. As required by the Listing Rules, the Company is required to
report on environmental, social and governance (“ESG”") information of the
Group on an annual basis and regarding the same period covered in this
annual report. The Company will publish the ESG report on the websites of

the Company and the Stock Exchange in due course.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with laws and
regulations. During the year, our establishment and operations have
complied with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
In addition, the Company is required to comply with the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulations. The Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group during the year. There was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group's
results and business can be found in the section headed “Risk Management

Report” on pages 64 to 69 of this annual report.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group recognises that its success also depends on the support from
key stakeholders which include its shareholders, regulators, customers,
employees, local communities and business partners and is committed to
building a close relationship with them in order to improve the quality of its
products and services and achieve further success in its business. As required
by the Listing Rules, the Company is required to report on ESG information of
the Group on an annual basis and regarding the same period covered in this
annual report. The Company will publish the ESG report on the websites of

the Company and the Stock Exchange in due course.

Important events

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
important event affecting the Group has occurred since 31 December 2017.

Future business developments

An indication of future development of the Group’s business is presented in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 12 to 15 and pages 16 to 23 of this annual report

respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year
are set out in note 28(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the

consolidated statements of changes in equity on page 95 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$2,936 million. Under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017

are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note

23 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in

note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the Company’s share

award scheme are set out in the paragraphs headed “Share option scheme

and “Share award scheme” of this report respectively.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group is set

out on pages 175 to 176.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were as follows:

Non-executive Chairman

Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy

Executive Directors

Mr. Ge Su (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Shun Fai

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Jerzy Czubak

Mr. Michael Casamento

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric

In accordance with article 87 of the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors shall retire but, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election pursuant to article 86
of the articles of association of the Company. Details of the Directors to be
retired and subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company are contained in the circular to be despatched together with

this annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the employer’s costs charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year and the retirement benefit schemes of the Group
are set out in notes 8 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group

are set out on pages 24 to 35 of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. These related party transactions did not constitute

connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the facilities agreement dated 13 February 2017 (the “Facilities
Agreement”) entered into, among other parties, the Company as borrower,
two subsidiaries of the Company as guarantors, and various financial
institutions as agent, arrangers, security trustee and lenders, a term loan
facility of HK$1,150,000,000 (the “Facility A Loan”) and a revolving loan facility
of HK$450,000,000 (the “Facility B Loan’, together with the Facility A Loan,
the “Loan Facilities”) are made available to the Company. The Facility A Loan
is repayable in its entirety on the day which is 36 months from the date of
the Facilities Agreement. The Facility B Loan is repayable at the last day of its
interest period, being one, two or three months or any other period agreed
between the Company and the facility agent provided that it shall not extend
beyond 36 months from the date of the Facilities Agreement. The Loan
Facilities have been used to refinance the HK$2.6 billion term and revolving
credit facilities made available to the Company in 2014 in full and thereafter
finance the general corporate purposes of the Company. A similar three-
year term loan facility of HK$400,000,000 was also made to the Company in
December 2017 for settlement of the consideration payable by the Company
in relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Outstanding

Viewpoint Limited.
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If at any time, either (i) any person or group of persons acting in concert
hold more voting share capital of the Company than Amcor Limited; or (ii)
without limitation to (i) above, Amcor Limited fails to maintain its beneficial
ownership, direct or indirect, of not less than: (aa) thirty five per cent (35%)
of the shareholding of the Company or (bb) only in the event of dilution
in Amcor Limited's shareholding due to any share placements by the
Company, twenty five per cent (25%) of the shareholding of the Company, it
will constitute an event of default as a result of which all or any part of the
commitments under the loan facilities may be cancelled and all amounts
outstanding under the loan facilities may immediately become due and

payable.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or

existed during the year under review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 75% of the total sales for the year
and the sales attributable to the largest customer included therein accounted

for approximately 22%.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 47% of the total purchases for the year and the
purchase attributable to the largest supplier included therein accounted for

approximately 179%.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their close associates
(within meaning of the Listing Rules) or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s Shares) had

any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS’INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates had any interest
in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with any of the businesses of the Group.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a) Directors’and chief executive’s interests and short positions
in the securities of the Company and its associated
corporations

As at 31 December 2017, the following Directors or the chief executive
of the Company had or were deemed to have interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong ("SFO"))
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provision of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;

or (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
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Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by HAIpTE A Té%;_ﬁgé‘#’x%aﬂﬁ
Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules: _E—r AZEBAA AT MR PT 2 fEasak
A
No. of Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares held issued share
Name of Director Nature of interest (Note) Position capital
FsEEROEE HEBITRAE
EEnR EREME (MH=E) y-§.:1 BREI
Mr. Ge Su Beneficial owner 168,285 Long 0.02%
BEE ERERA "R
Mr. Liu Shun Fai Beneficial owner 84,142 Long 0.01%
R EREAA e

Note:  The underlying shares represent share options granted by the Company,
further details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
contained in the Listing Rules.

Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2017, the following persons (not being
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares held Position capital
EEBITRA
REREH &4 PR & B R BMAOBSLH
Amcor Limited (Note) Interest of controlled corporation 442,550,000 Long 47.63%
Amcor Limited (Ff{5E) AR R e
Amcor Packaging (Asia) Pty Limited (Note) Interest of controlled corporation 442,550,000 Long 47.63%
Amcor Packaging (Asia) Pty Limited (Ff&E) RPEGEE S 55
Amcor Fibre Packaging-Asia Pte Limited (Note) Beneficial owner 442,550,000 Long 47.63%
Amcor Fibre Packaging-Asia Pte Limited (F{3F) BExEBA we
Wellington Management Group LLP Interest of controlled corporation 123,559,722 Long 13.30%
Wellington Management Group LLP RiEGhEE RS HE
FIL Limited Investment Manager 93,086,000 Long 10.02%
FIL Limited REKE HE
Prudential plc Interest of controlled corporation 62,227,000 Long 6.69%
Prudential plc SIS AR o
FMR LLC Investment Manager 48,470,691 Long 5.22%
FMR LLC RERE e
Note:  The issued shares of Amcor Limited are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange B5E - Amcor LimitedZ BT M INRMEFRZMA

78
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Pte Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of Amcor Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the executive Directors has a fixed term of appointment but their
appointment can be terminated by either party by serving not less than
one month's notice in writing. All non-executive Directors (including the
non-executive Chairman and the independent non-executive Directors) have

a fixed term of appointment of two years.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save and except for those disclosed under the paragraph headed “Related
party transactions” above, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief executive's
interests and short positions in the securities of the Company and its
associated corporations” under the section headed “Disclosure of interests”
above and in the section headed “Share option scheme” below, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in the Company granted to any Director, or their respective spouse
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the "Old Share Option
Scheme”) on 10 March 2004 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group.
The Old Share Option Scheme expired on 9 March 2014 and no further share
options can be granted under the Old Share Option Scheme.

A new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
and approved by the Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 12 June 2014. Eligible participants of the New Share Option
Scheme include any employees, directors of each member of the Group,
joint venture partners, contractors, agents or representatives, consultants,
advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors, customers, licensees of the Group
or any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or
may contribute to the Group. The New Share Option Scheme has become
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 16 June 2014 and up to
92,154,700 share options entitling the holders thereof to subscribe for up to
92,154,700 shares can be granted under the New Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of

the total number of shares in issue.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the New Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the Board to each grantee provided that the period within which the
shares may be taken up under the share option must not be more than 10
years from the date of grant of the share option. There is no minimum period
for which the share option must be held or the performance targets which

must be achieved before the share option can be exercised.

The subscription price for the shares under the New Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion provided that
such price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
the grant of an option, (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five consecutive business
days immediately preceding the date of the grant, and (iii) the nominal value
of a share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of

the grant of an option.
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No share option was granted under the New Share Option Scheme after
it was approved. As such, the total number of shares available for issue
under the New Share Option Scheme is 92,154,700 shares, representing
approximately 9.9% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2017. The following table shows the movements in the Company’s
share options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme but remain
outstanding during the year:
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Number of share options
BREHE
Closing price
Exercise per share
At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled  Lapsed At price per  immediately
Name or category 1 January during during during during 31 December share before date
of grantee 2017 the year the year theyear  the year 2017 Exercise period (Note 1) of grant
RIB-t% RZE-t& BRAEER BERL AR
ARABATER -A-B  FARY FREAE  FREE FREX TSAST-B TEH (W&1)  ZBREHE
Directors
B5=F
Mr. Ge Su 168,285 - - - - 168,285 29 July 2012 to 27 July 2021 HKS3.64 HKS4.73
BHAE “E-ZE+AZ AR 364BT 4738
FIRC-E+ACTtA
Mr. Liu Shun Fai 84,142 - - - - 84,142 29 July 2012 to 27 July 2021 HK$3.64 HKS4.73
BREXE “E-ZF+AZTAH 364BTT 47387
ECEC-H+ACTtA
Sub-total 252427 - - - - 252427
Pt
Employees (other than 13,035,274 - - - (11492,752) 1542522 29 July 2012 to 27 July 2021 HKS3.64 HKS4.73
Directors) in aggregate
ZT-—ftAZthA
BB (BERI) FIFC-FELACTER 3e4BT 4738
Total 13,287,701 - - - (11492,752) 1,794,949
ast
Note: Mz

1. The exercise price of the share options is reduced from HKS$4.72 per share to
HK$3.64 per share pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 13 June 2013.

1. BEAQRGR-_Z—=F~A+=ZBHT2KE
RERG BB REER  BRENTEESRS
(47278 T RIERZEFAR3.64787T ©
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company also adopted an employees’ share award scheme (the
"Employees’ Share Award Scheme”) in June 2007 for the purposes of
recognising the contributions by certain employees, providing them
with incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and attracting suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. The Employees’ Share Award Scheme expired in
June 2017. As at 31 December 2017, there were no outstanding Awarded
Shares.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made HK$94,000 donations

to charitable organisations in Hong Kong and the PRC.

FINAL AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK7.3 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: final dividend of HK2.2 cents per share and a final special dividend of
HK1.1 cents per share) to be payable to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company as at 15
June 2018. Subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 8 June
2018, the said final dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders
around 28 June 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following

periods:

1. from 5 June 2018 to 8 June 2018 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfers of shares will be registered, for ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting to be held on 8 June 2018. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, all transfer
shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:00
p.m.on 4 June 2018; and
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2. from 14 June 2018 to 15 June 2018 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfers of shares will be registered, for ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017. In order to be eligible to receive the
proposed final dividend, all transfer shares of the Company accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong, not later than 4:00 p.m. on 13 June 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director and other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association. Such
provisions were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31

December 2017 and remained in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance

throughout the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued share

capital was held by the public as at 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report”in this report.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event(s) after the reporting period are set out in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the “Committee”) on 10 March
2004 for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision on the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal control systems of the

Group.

The Committee comprises the three independent non-executive Directors

with Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith acting as Chairman.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017 together with the notes attached thereto have been
reviewed by the Committee, which was of the opinion that such statements
complied with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and

legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

RSM Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

There is no change in auditors of the Company since the first appointment
on 1 December 2003.

On behalf of the Board
Chan Chew Keak, Billy

Non-executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of
AMVIG Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMVIG Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 174, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were HREATETESRERPNEXEHE - 2A5Y

of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements NG EMERRNEAZAEENEE - &
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our LWEHEERMBAEBGEUBRELTA
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our EREETEREEN RPUTSYHELBEIEREH
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. BEMNER RMART2HEEBRT=EERE
The key audit matter we identified is impairment assessment of goodwill. JRERES ©

Key Audit Matter
BRBETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETFNAEEZBERETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB RER G

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
SERE B REMT16 -

The Group has goodwill of approximately HK$2,739 million
attributable mainly to the printing of cigarette packages cash
generating unit (“CGU"). Management is required to test goodwill
at least annually for impairment. During the year, there was decline
in revenue of the printing of cigarette packages segment, which
increases the risk that the goodwill may be impaired.

BB A A B E492,739,0000008 7T © HENEEBEERHR

SELEM ((ReELEM])  EEEAZLRFAABER -

B FASEBRIR DA 2z T - 8T B s E
HER o

The recoverable amount of the printing of cigarette packages
CGU was based on a calculation of value in use which requires
management to make assumptions about the future including
forecast sales, profit margins and growth rates and to determine
an appropriate market discount rate. These estimates require

significant management judgement.

SEAKHMNREELBU 2 AIKRESBIEREREER -

8 ZEEEBREEBHRKIFLEE  SREBAEE - FB

KRERE  WEEEEZTHHRE - ZEFEHFEZREEE .

{ELH B R HIEf -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

B EEEREMEREZEFEE

Assessing the mathematical integrity of the valuation model;

AHEEERAZ BB TR

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions based
on the CGU's historical performance, the current operating
environment and our knowledge of the industry;
ERNZBReELBU s BEERR  RELERFRERMAYH
TEZBEFERRRR AL

Assessing the historical accuracy of management’s previous
forecasts by comparing to past actual outcomes;
BERHL A EEARTHEEE AL EL e
M

Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rate with the

assistance of our internal valuation specialists; and

ERMABAEER 2B THERRREZEEE + &

Performing sensitivity analysis by considering the impact

of reasonably possible changes on key assumptions on the
recoverable amount of the CGU.
FRERZESESRENAINESE s BRER 2 AER]
R BT REITEURE D -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’'s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities

for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as

a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Liu Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

22 March 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZT—tF+-A=1+—RHILFE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —TE—RF
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
ibEzs FH&ET FHT
Turnover 2] 6 2,448,316 2,551,386
Cost of goods sold SHE A (1,725,223) (1,762,529)
Gross profit EF 723,093 788,857
Other income HA A 6 135,411 82,169
Selling and distribution costs HERDHAX (65,772) (94,078)
Administrative expenses THREX (214,803) (276,131)
Other operating expenses Hihi& & (6,372) (91,427)
Finance costs & A 7 (55,150) (84,517)
Share of profits of associates FE(LEE A T A 16,521 32,895
Profit before tax BANEF 8 532,928 357,768
Income tax expenses FriSHiR X 1 (130,279) (128,672)
Profit for the year KEEREF 402,649 229,096
Attributable to: AR &7 Eqh -
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIEZ Z DN 345,785 175,589
Non-controlling interests FEPE G 56,864 53,507
Earnings per share BRER
- Basic (HK cents) — ER GB) 12(a) 37.2 18.9
- Diluted (HK cents) — %8 OB 12(b) N/A N/A
TEH TEA
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HILEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Profit for the year AEE i F 402,649 229,096
Other comprehensive income: Hp 2 EE ¢
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AR E P AT B s HA -
Exchange differences on translating RE M FETS 2 [E K Z58
foreign operations 280,286 (198,565)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates FE{HE =N B H b 2 EULES 8,973 (6,175)
Cash flow hedges R mEE A
Change in fair value of hedging instruments FRAEEZEHIAZ
arising during the year NEEE) (47,144) -
Reclassification adjustments for losses relating STABREREERIAY
to the hedging instruments included in ElEzEFNHRAR
profit or loss 37,054 -
(10,090) =
Other comprehensive income for the year, AEEHMEEEGS
net of tax (BHIKRBE) 279,169 (204,740)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZHKZEE 681,818 24,356
Attributable to: BT &7
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZEWN 603,041 (14,297)
Non-controlling interests FEPE S RS 78,777 38,653
681,818 24,356
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At 31 December 2017

R-F—tF+-_A=1t—8H

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —TE—RF
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
ibEzs FH&ET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 14 701,633 659,337
Prepaid land lease payments FENHEE L HFIE 15 152,438 145,581
Goodwill [EES 16 2,740,810 2,540,547
Interests in associates REtE N R 2R 17 131,294 105,800
Other non-current assets HibIERBIEE 18 48,197 11,275
3,774,372 3,462,540
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 275,751 196,819
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b fE Y 508 20 1,074,458 985,356
Prepaid land lease payments FENHEE IR 15 4,618 4,281
Prepayments and deposits AR FIE Rike 44,166 29,092
Current tax assets NEAFI IR A BE 20,439 30,176
Pledged bank deposits BHEBRITIFR 21 2,398 2,223
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S R 21 1,242,769 1,581,018
2,664,599 2,828,965
TOTAL ASSETS EESAR 6,438,971 6,291,505
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves BRAR S
Share capital il 26 9,290 9,290
Reserves & 28 3,732,688 3,230,914
Equity attributable to owners RAEIER AELER
of the Company 3,741,978 3,240,204
Non-controlling interests FEPE S R A 316,650 262,187
Total equity R 4,058,628 3,502,391

ZZT—F4F R Annual Report 2017 93



2017 2016
—E—+tHF 2T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B sE FExT FHET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Bank borrowings RITER 23 1,466,760 1,296,451
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 24 20,687 =
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 25 10,627 12,566
1,498,074 1,309,017
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B o RHEHMENIE 22 829,167 742,098
Current tax liabilities KEAIBEEE 35,214 33,165
Derivative financial instruments PTEemMIT A 24 14,291 =
Current portion of bank borrowings RITEBRZMEE D 23 3,597 704,834
882,269 1,480,097
Total liabilities BEAH 2,380,343 2,789,114
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERREEHAE 6,438,971 6,291,505
Net current assets REEERE 1,782,330 1,348,868
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBEE 5,556,702 4,811,408

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2018

Ge Su
Ex

Executive Director

HiITEE
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Executive Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-F—LFT-A=T-AILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRREAEL
Employee Foreign
share-based currency Non-
Share Share Special compensation  Hedging translation Revaluation ~ Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
HRGZH
Z[E8 it FiEm

Re  ROEE HHBE  WERE  HNER  BER  EMRR  LERRE  REEA Eh BE  EHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tn Tn Tn Tn Tn Tén Tén T T Tn Tn
At 1 January 2016 R=E-~E-A-A 9,290 2517392 (731,083) 19220 = 431887 8010 188,752 1,064,054 3507562 238,809 3746371
Total comprehensive income for the year TEFRENRAE - - - - - (189880) - - 175,589 (14297) 38653 24356
Transfer from retained profits - Group ERARBEN - 158 - - - - - - o 5,145 (5,149) = = S

Dividend paid for 2015 (Note 13) THZF-RERE
(izaE) = = = = = = - - TR0 (6782) - (780

Dividend paid for 2016 (Note 13) FHZE-ERE
(M) = = = = = = - - sy (Y - 1M
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders Xt 7EE 5 RRRE - - - - - - - - - - (33199) (33199)
Acquisition of non-controling interests WS = - (109,988) - - - - - - (109988) (14498)  (124486)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEAR = = = = - - - - - - M 340
Changes in equity for the year KEEEEEY - - (109988) - - (189880) - 5,145 2730 (2673%8) B8 (4390

At 31 December 2016 RIE-7E

t-A=t-H 9290 2,517,392 (841,031) 19,220 - 242,001 8,010 193897 1,091,425 3,240,204 262,187 3,502,391
Total comprehensive income for the year KEELANSLE - - - - (10,000) 267,346 - - 345,785 603,041 78,777 681,818
Transfer from retained profits - Group ERARBET - 140 - - - - - - - 5478 (5,478) - - -

Dividend paid for 2016 (Note 13) THZE-RFRE
(W3n3) = = o = = o = = (30,659) (30,659) = (30,659)

Dividend paid for 2017 (Note 13) THZE-tERE
(Htzt13) = = - - - - - - (0608)  (70,608) - (70608)
Dividend paid to non-controling shareholders % f3FEHIERRR S - - - - - - - - - - (4314 (24314)
Transfer of reserve upon lapse of share options ~ EBRIEX ML BREE - - - (16731) - - - - 16,731 - - -
Changes in equity for the year TEEERED - - - (16,731) (10,090) 267,346 - 5478 255711 501,774 54,463 556,237

At31 December 2017 RZ5-tF

t-A=t-H 9290 2517,392  (841,031) 2,489 (10,090) 509,347 8,010 199375 134719 3,741,978 316,650 4,058,628
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HILEE
2017 2016
—=E—+tF TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEBCRERE
Profit before tax T A A 532,928 357,768
Adjustments for: FLATIEEB (B -
Share of profit of associates FEAGESE = A B 5 A (16,521) (32,895)
Finance costs A& Rk A 55,150 84,517
Impairment losses and write off B WG
on trade receivables VEREYSE=USE 6 5,015 21
Write down of inventories WRFE 1,222 771
Depreciation e 74,612 90,846
Net gain on disposals of property, HEYE - BE R&#E
plant and equipment 2R S (1,063) (1,311)
Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss FEREH (W), BE (105,514) 114,015
Interest income B A (13,929) (32,672)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEfAEE T IR EE SR 4,448 4,159
Operating profit before working capital changes — RET&iEE ©FEF] 248 E R F 536,348 585219
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (gm),/ wd (80,154) 108,914
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N H b e Y R IE 18 hn (94,117) (146,989)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and deposits AT FIA Rike (3hn), wd (15,074) 520
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 R H M EN IR
240, GRiA) 87,069 (195,539)
Cash generated from operations KELLEEHNIRS 434,072 352,125
Income taxes paid SIFREE (87,085) (128,840)
Withholding taxes paid X AENR (34,892) (19,486)
Net cash generated from operating activities RO EEERIRE F58 312,095 203,799

96 JBRRHERR H R 2 5 AMVIG Holdings Limited



2017 2016
—=2—+tF —E-RF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETZHNRESRE
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRAIRITER (), m (175) 6,352
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME - BEKIEHE (59,703) (44,497)
Payments of deposits for other assets HihBE RN (16,543) (9,561)
Dividend received from associates 2 E A RIRE - 33,601
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME « BE MREFTEIE
plant and equipment 5,214 3,891
Interest received 2 UF 2 13,929 32,672
Deposits for acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—RWB AR ZES (30,000) =
Repayment of loan receivables e B R R - 584
Acquisitions of subsidiaries U B T B 1 ) - (61,009)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBERAZFRE (87,278) (37,967)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMETHNRERE
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Ut i FE R ) 1 e 2 = (54,624)
Bank borrowings repaid BRRITER (2,413,464) (146,428)
Bank borrowings raised Z5RITER 1,874,166 33,500
Interest paid TRFE (46,069) (56,966)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company THNARABHEEARE (101,267) (143,073)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders A FERE I I AR R AR B (24,314) (33,199)
Net cash used in financing activities REEREFEBRIE S F5E (710,948) (400,790)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERBEEEYH
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA ERE (486,131) (234,958)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREE) 2 28 147,882 (124,607)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—HWREREEZEY 1,581,018 1,940,583
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=—A=+—8#®
AT 31 DECEMBER RERBEEEY 1,242,769 1,581,018
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  BHE&RBESESEWHN I
Bank and cash balances RITRIBREH 1,242,769 1,581,018
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GENERAL INFORMATION

AMVIG Holdings Limited (The “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
27 November 2003 under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies. The address of its principal place of business is Room
601-602, 6th Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial

statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a number of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") that are first effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. None of
these impact on the accounting policies of the Group. However,
the Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure
Initiative require disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The effect of the amendments on the
Group's consolidated financial statements has been the inclusion of

additional disclosures in Note 30.

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017. These new and revised HKFRSs

include the following which may be relevant to the Group.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
HKFRS 16 Leases’

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income tax Treatments?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with
earlier application permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the
actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may differ
as the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standards are initially applied in the Group's
interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2018. The
Group may also change its accounting policy elections, including
the transition options, until the standards are initially applied in that

interim financial report.
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100

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, new rules for

hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to adopt
the new standard on the required effective date and will not restate

comparative information.

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at that date, the directors of the Company
have assessed the impact of HKFRS 9 to the Group's consolidated

financial statements as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group expects to irrevocably designate the financial assets
currently classified as available-for-sale as at fair value through

other comprehensive income.

Fair value gains and losses on these instruments will no longer
be recycled to profit or loss on disposal. The Group currently
measures certain financial assets at cost less impairment. Under

HKFRS 9 these financial assets will be measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. FRMXTHE RAESFT BB MR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) HER (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise and measure either
a 12-month expected credit loss or lifetime expected credit
loss, depending on the asset and the facts and circumstances.
The Group expects that the application of the expected credit
loss model may result in earlier recognition of credit losses.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the directors of the Group
anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 would not have a
material impact on the results and financial position of the
Group.

(c) Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the requirements
relating to measuring and recognising ineffectiveness under
HKAS 39. However, greater flexibility has been introduced to
the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting. The
Group has assessed that its current hedge relationships will
qualify as continuing hedges upon the adoption of HKFRS 9
and therefore it expects that the accounting for its hedging
relationships will not be significantly impacted.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace
the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting for
revenue from construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. The standard permits either a full retrospective or
a modified retrospective approach for the adoption. The Group
intends to adopt the standard using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption
will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and
that comparatives will not be restated.
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NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR I

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. RANFFT RBEBFTEBMER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) HER (4F)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) MM RE R Z AT REHE
(continued) SIE BB EER (&)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BB BHEEREBI5HEFE
(continued) Az (&

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has BIFES TR AEBE D BT
identified the following areas which are expected to be affected: BRIFE 2 HBAT
(a) Timing of revenue recognition @) MBRWAFFE
Currently, revenue from the sale of manufactured goods is BAT EMAEZERRERRM
generally recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership B - BN MRS E AR a2 W
have passed to the customers. Ao
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer REBBVWHREEANE 155 - ©
obtains control of the promised good or service in the BEFBUS A #9 AGh i fn R TG #
contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of MRS - 5 R HERRUMA - BB
the promised good or service is regarded as being transferred B & RIS 155 R = AGER
over time: o Sk AR 75 0 128 I 4 AR /R 7 — R
NEBRIER
a) When the customer simultaneously receives and a) BPEXBENTANREE
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s B RIBEEREAPEEMF
performance, as the entity performs; o
b) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an b) FRZBEAOTREIENHRT
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer EPFEBEREENMRRD
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; THIMBEE (PINIELEETZ
I
c)  When the entity’s performance does not create an asset 0 FBIEHNITAIAREIE—IE
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an AREEARNEMEAARZ
enforceable right to payment for performance completed BE THEIRAEAHLESH
to date. LB BRI D ST P

MR TITHER) -
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining when the transfer of

control occurs.

For contracts with customers in which the sale of
manufactured goods is generally expected to be the only
performance obligation, adoption of HKFRS 15 is not expected
to have any impact on the Group's revenue or profit or loss. The
Group expects the revenue recognition to occur at a point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,

generally on delivery of the goods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations. The
new standard introduces a single accounting model for lessees.
For lessees the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward
the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS 17 substantially
unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to classify leases as

operating or financing leases.
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NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR I

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

104

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year

prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will affect primarily
the accounting for the Group's operating leases. The Group's office
and factory property leases are currently classified as operating
leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group will need to recognise
and measure a liability at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset
for these leases. The interest expense on the lease liability and
depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or
loss. The Group's assets and liabilities will increase and the timing of

expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in Note 33(a), the Group's future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its office and
factory properties amounted to approximately HK$57,414,000 as
at 31 December 2017. These leases are expected to be recognised
as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the effects of

discounting and the transition reliefs available to the Group.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets out how to
apply that standard when there is uncertainty about income tax
treatments. Entities are required to determine whether uncertain tax
treatments should be assessed separately or as a group depending
on which approach will better predict the resolution of the
uncertainties. Entities will have to assess whether it is probable that
a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. If yes, the
accounting treatment will be consistent with the entity’s income
tax filings. If not, however, entities are required to account for the
effects of the uncertainty using either the most likely outcome or
expected value method depending on which method is expected

to better predict its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the interpretation
on the consolidated financial statements until a more detailed

assessment has been completed.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are

measured at fair value).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these consolidated financial statements are

disclosed in Note 4.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant

activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the

practical ability to exercise that right.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is

transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.
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The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating to that

subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between the

non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their

acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is
attributed to the Group.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the

acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared
to its recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised

immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability to

exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting period when
there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
and other comprehensive income is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the

profits equals the share of losses not recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

110

()

Associates (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's

entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and

any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If

an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and does

not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HKS$, which is the Company’s presentation
currency. The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB"). The Directors consider that choosing HKS as the
presentation currency best suits the needs of the shareholders

and investors.
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(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or

loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates

when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company'’s

presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the

date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates for the period (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and
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(continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (continued)

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign

currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are reclassified to consolidated
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date for indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the

fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the goodwill
of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent that

they reverse the impairment.
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At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
its financial assets (other than those at fair value through profit or
loss) are impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition, the
estimated future cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have

been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost is

considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them collectively for
impairment, based on the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account

are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly reduced

by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount of
the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the allowance
account for trade receivables) through profit or loss. However, the
reversal must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is

reversed.
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(f)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale debt securities, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. In
respect of available-for-sale equity securities, an increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation reserve;

impairment losses are not reversed through profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of manufactured goods is recognised on
the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered

and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Subcontracting fee income is recognised when the subcontracting

services are rendered.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period to match them with the costs they

are intended to compensate.
Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are recorded

as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Government grants (continued)

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets

is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the

purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.
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(k) Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up

to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions

payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises restructuring costs

and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Employee share-based compensation benefits

The Group issues employee share-based compensation benefits to

certain directors and employees.

Employee share-based compensation benefits to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the employee share-based compensation benefits is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the

effect of non market-based vesting conditions.
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Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting

profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.
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(m

) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful

lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 - 40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 - 10 years
Plant and machinery 3 - 20 years
Office equipment 3 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and machinery pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant

assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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(p)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an financial asset is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs
except in the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition.
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(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. These assets are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method (except for short-term
receivables where interest is immaterial) minus any reduction
for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash are classified in this

category.

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of these investments are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, until the investments are
disposed of or there is objective evidence that the investments
are impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Dividend, foreign
exchange gain/loss and interest calculated using the effective
interest method on available-for-sale equity investments are

recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity

instruments, are measured of cost less impairment losses.
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(r)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
All derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently measured

at fair value.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of a particular
risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly

probable forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and effective as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The Group’s policy with respect to
hedging the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment is to

designate the hedging relationship as a cash flow hedge.

If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecasted
transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the
associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
cash flow hedging reserve are included in the initial measurement

of the asset or liability.

For hedges that do not result in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or liability, amounts accumulated in the cash flow hedging
reserve are recognised in profit or loss in the same period in which

the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or the hedge no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, for forecast
transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognised in other comprehensive income is retained in equity
until the forecasted transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from

equity to profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
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(w) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the reporting period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(aa) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the

consolidated financial statements when material.

4. KEY ESTIMATES

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.

(a)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and residual
values, and related depreciation charges for the Group's property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$701,633,000 (2016:
HK$659,337,000).

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The carrying
amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting period was
approximately HK$2,740,810,000 (2016: HKS$2,540,547,000). Details
of the Group's goodwill are stated in Note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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(c)

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss on receivables based on
assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness, the past collection history
and securities (if any) of each debtor. Impairments arise where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of impairment loss on
receivables requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and
impairment loss on receivables in the year in which such estimate
has been changed. Detail of allowance for estimated irrecoverable
trade receivables are stated in Note 20 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Allowance for inventories and net realisable value of
inventories

Allowance for inventories is made based on the aging and
estimated net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of
the allowance amount involves judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the year in which such estimate has
been changed. For the year ended 31 December 2017, allowance for
slow-moving inventories amounted to approximately HK$1,222,000
(2016: HK$771,000) was made.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expense. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer’s taste and competitor’s actions
in response to serve industry cycles. The Group will reassess the

estimates by the end of each reporting period.
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The Group is subject to income tax in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provisions for
income taxes and deferred tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, approximately HK$130,279,000 (2016:
HK$128,672,000) of income tax was charged to profit or loss based

on the estimated profit from operations.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise the potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Directors have
established management policies, guidelines and control procedures to
manage the Group's exposure to such risks.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of respective
Group entities, such as HKS and USD. During the year, the Group
started to enter into cross currency swap (the “CCS") contracts to
hedge the foreign currency risk arising from bank borrowings. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of other foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments (primarily CCS
contracts) to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency
fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments and forecasted
transactions. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the
Group’s policies approved by the board of directors of the Company,
which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives

consistent with the Group's risk management strategy.
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At 31 December 2017, if the RMB had weakened 8% (2016: 6%) RIE—tF+-_A=+—HB" A
against HKS and USD with all other variables held constant, the RS BT RkETIEY (ZF— X
impact on consolidated profit after tax are summarised in the F:6%)  BRRFAEMAIZREZRE
following table. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign T8 HEAWRRENZHFERTE
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation Bt o Lk BRE DN BREARLBINE
at the year end for a 8% (2016: 6%) change in foreign currency rates. FHEE¥®IEE - ARFRHM8% (ZF
A positive number indicates an increase in consolidated profit after — RN 6%) ZHAINEEREHFHER
tax and negative number indicates a decrease in consolidated profit MY o FEBEREATEENEM -
after tax. If the RMB had strengthened 8% (2016: 6%) against HKS BEHBREATERMNED - WA
and USD with all other variables held constant, there would be an RS BT RETAE (ZF— N
equal and opposite impact on consolidated profit after tax. F o 6%) 0 RERPTAE E AL AT B = RHF
N R ARERNELERES
HTE -
Impact of HK$ Impact of USD
BT En¥

2017 2016 2017 2016
=E—tF —ZT-RE Z=F-—tF —FT—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

Consolidated profit after tax LA ER] (93,877)® (95,430)% 2150 1140
(i)  This is mainly a result of net foreign exchange loss on bank and cash () WEEBFEZRANBTHECRITERES
balances, other payables and bank borrowing denominated in HKS. @EER - Ht B RIERIRITERZER

BRI RRPTEL -

(i) This is mainly a result of net foreign exchange gain on bank and cash (i) Jit HETERUERTIHEZRITERS
balances and other payables denominated in USD. G A T B B AN R I 2 B U e R ER P
@( °
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At 31 December 2017, if the RMB had weakened/strengthened 8%
against HKS with all other variables held constant, the impact on
the equity are summarised in the following table. The sensitivity
analysis includes outstanding foreign currency denominated
derivative instruments and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 8% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
indicates an increase in the equity and negative number indicates a

decrease in the equity.

R-E—+FE+-A=+—HB"  HA
RERBITRE FESY - BRFE
HmSHEEFTE  HESHNTZER
T&RE - LBRESTBELREER
LAONEESTEMITE TR  WFEKRAT
8% INBIE R FB)ABHERE - FH
RERIEN - BEERTERRD

RMB had RMB had

weakened strengthened

ARBEE ARMAHE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

The equity R (41,994) 33,921

(i)~ This is mainly a result of the fair values loss of the derivative instruments
for cash flow hedges.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The Group has policies in place and the exposure
to credit risk is managed through the application of credit
approvals, credit limits and monitoring process. The Group's senior
management performs on-going credit evaluation and reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt regularly
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised for

irrecoverable debts.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with

exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances including pledged bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are well-established

financial institutions.
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B2 AUl & R - AR R 3 AT R
ZEBHEREE RERE -
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The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserve
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities is as follows:

AEBZBRRAEHRERBEEREN
ZRBELTE  UBERHEERRIA
ENEHEERERDECTEZR
TR -

ERAEEENTESRBBESHORT
R REZFNPLHAOT

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years
—&R —E=fF —EHfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTER FHER
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF
+=A=t+—H
Bank borrowings RITER 43,654 39,657 1,484,781
Trade and other payables B 5 K HALFER FIA 829,167 = -
At 31 December 2016 RZZT—REF
+=—A=+—H”
Bank borrowings RITER 757,201 1,312,943 =
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EAbFET FRIE 742,098 = -
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The following table details the Group’s liquidity analysis for its
derivative financial instruments. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows
on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis. When the
amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as

illustrative by the yield curves at the end of the reporting period.

TRATEETESRIARDNEY
FHADN - ZRBRERTRAHNFR
ERMAMAFREENTET AR
HE - MEBNKERSBERETE
B RESES2BESNE &
WE AR A R s AR -

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years
—&RK —E=fF —EIfF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHERT FET
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZB—+tHF+=-A=+—H
Derivative - net settlement TTEIR - BHELEHE
ccs X BB 14,605 11,957 10,470

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank borrowings. The Group’s bank deposits of
approximately HK$562,005,000 (2016: HK$638,095,000) bear interest
at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risks. The Directors consider the Group's exposure to interest
rate risk on the bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing

bank balances are within short maturity period.

In the current year, the Group has been using CCS contracts in
order to mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations relating
to interest cash flows. The critical terms of these CCS contracts
are similar to those of the hedged loans. These CCS contracts are

designated as effective cash flow hedges of interest rate risk.

AEBRRITFEFRLBITERTE
HHERR - AEEZRITFERLY
#$562,005,000% T (= T — X F:
638,095,000/ 7T) & E M EE B
HEHAFEMNERR - AR ER
TRSIBPERE  WEERALE
[ A R 17 1% 20 1M 2 1 & @ kg K F
WAREK -
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The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
variable-rate bank borrowings which bear interest at variable rates

varied with then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2017, if the interest rate had been 100 basis points
(2016: 100 basis points) lower, with all other variables held constant,
the impact on consolidated profit after tax is summarised in the
following table. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding bank
borrowings and adjusts the respective interest rates at the year
end of 100 basis points (2016: 100 basis points). A positive number
indicates an increase in consolidated profit after tax. If the interest
rate had been 100 basis points (2016: 100 basis points) higher,
with all other variables held constant, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on consolidated profit after tax and the balances

below would be negative.

Z]K%.Zﬁé\/ﬁﬂ?ﬂ IEE—E/? )
IRITIERA R ZERITERRIEE
L ARG S -

RZE—+F+=ZA=+—8" i#
ERERI00EER (ZF—754F : 1001&
BB BEBRAMAHMAIZERRET
B HRAMBENZZERNTER
e I BEAE DM EREERITE
o WRFRAEMEEFE100/EE 2L
—T—NF 100EEE) - EHET
FE A"Rfé/m"ui‘bu o i F & £ F1001E
I (ZF—NF - 100fEEE) - BR
FiEHEMAIZERRITTE  BHEK
EREEFNEERNSEELZE M~
PERIGEREAH -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Consolidated profit after tax IEAETIBET 14,668 19,9801

(i) This is mainly a result of the decrease in interest expenses on bank
borrowings.
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At 31 December 2017, if the interest rate had been 100 basis points
lower/higher, with all other variables held constant, the impact
on the equity is summarised in the following table. The sensitivity
analysis includes outstanding derivative instruments and adjusts
the respective interest rates at the year end of 100 basis points. A
positive number indicates an increase in the equity.

R-_ZT—+F+=-_A=+—8" 7
KR EF100fAEE - BRATBHE
A BERXREFTE  HESIFE
RTIERBA - BERESTRIERE
EBTAETAE  YRFERFEEEFR R
TO0fEE S o IFEFE R iEmIG N o

Basis points Basis points

lower higher

ERT EREtH

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FExT

The equity R (14,651)" 6,316

(i)~ This is mainly as a result of the fair value loss of derivative instruments

(i) ﬁtg?gixﬂﬂiﬂi/ IBEIPHITAET A

for cash flow hedges. NEEEIBFFE -
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets: ERMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHEEREE 1,654 1,534
Loans and receivables (including cash f‘f?ﬂ&}%%mlﬁ (BiEERE& X
and cash equivalents) HEEEY) 2,319,625 2,568,597
Financial liabilities: c@as:
Derivative instruments in designated EEH PR ZITETIA
hedge accounting 34,978 -
Financial liabilities measured at REEK AT EZ BTG
amortised cost 2,299,524 2,743,383

Except as disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.

BRAR A B IS SRR KT sE24fT B & O
,m/\ﬁﬁfr&ﬂﬁﬁi\%mﬁﬁﬁwﬁliﬂé
ERtRABCREERESAQTF
BERE -
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The Group is principally engaged in the printing of cigarette packages

and manufacturing of transfer paper and laser film. An analysis of the

AEETENRETEERKORREBEHE R
BHERE2RE AEBEZEXBEREMEK

Group’s turnover and other income is as follows: ADHIAT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Turnover BER
Printing of cigarette packages BRI 2,416,802 2,516,854
Manufacturing of transfer paper and AL AR K 55 B PR B s
laser film 31,514 34,532
2,448,316 2,551,386
Other income EaA
Gain on sales of scrapped materials SHE RERL 2 W ek 6,258 7,055
Net gain on disposals of property, plant HEWE - BE RHREFR R
and equipment 1,063 1,311
Interest income MEMA 13,929 32,672
Subcontracting fee income mIBUA 10,188 10,507
Government grants and ERATEAE R B ESE (MiEE)
compensation received (Note) 30,633 25,427
Net exchange gain FREE H U a 66,787 -
Sundry income MBI A 6,553 5,197
135,411 82,169
Note: M -

() Government grants of approximately HK$11,035,000 (2016: HK$25,422,000)
were received from several local government authorities for encouraging
production enhancement and improving technology, of which the
entitlement was unconditional. Compensation received recognised by the
Group in current year represent compensation for the costs of relocation of
factory premises and surrendering the property in the PRC.
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2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFIE 55,150 84,517

The Group's profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following:

RNERZBRAUEFE MR (GTA) LATNIB
g :

2017 2016
—ZT—tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FH&T
Auditor's remuneration Z AN & 3,700 3,600
Cost of goods sold (Note) HEE MK (FEE) 1,725,223 1,762,529
Depreciation e 74,612 90,846
Net exchange (gain)/loss FEH 2% (W), B8 (66,787) 90,839
Operating lease rentals in respect of land, B EFRREZ
buildings and equipment KERERS 27,252 30,988
Research and development costs 75 R BB B AR 246 266
Staff costs including Directors’emoluments 2 THKAK (BIEEZEME)
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances —¥& - fEANRER 318,539 363,274
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIREFIET B 5K
contributions 24,505 25,520
343,044 388,794
Write off of trade receivables 154 & 5 FE W R IE 4,404 =
Write down of inventories MO E 1,222 771

Note: Cost of goods sold includes the following which are also included in the

M - HEEMRABETIIRE  THeREE

respective amounts disclosed separately above: EXBTHEHET -
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Depreciation e 65,080 77,055

Operating lease rentals in respect of land, Bt - BFRREZ

buildings and equipment KEHERS 14,276 17,282
Staff costs BIRA 187,473 183,017
Write down of inventories WORIFE 1,222 771
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Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and
Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) are as

LT ABRE EMABREERRIED (5
622%) FIBRFEEEEME ¢

follows:
2017 2016
—ZT—tF TR
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT FHET
Fees we
Non-executive directors EHITES 1,243 1,055
Independent non-executive directors BN IERITES 2,653 2,653
Other emoluments Hi e
Executive directors HITE
— Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  — EZA#& S « 328 R EWEA 8,224 34,052
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIRNE AT I3k 21 33
12,141 37,793

The emoluments of each director for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 are set out below:

BREERNBE_Z—LFR-ZT—KRF
TZRA=F+—HUIEFEZHEHINMT

Retirement

Salariesand  Discretionary  benefits scheme
Fees other benefits bonuses contributions Total

2R RIKER
e HttgE R mERA HE A @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TET TR TR

Name of Director e

Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy R 491 - _ _ 491
Mr. Ge Su B&HLE - 3,885 1,009 3 4,897
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy Czubakst 4 376 - - - 376
Mr. Liu Shun Fai BreE st - 2,664 666 18 3,348
Mr. Michael Casamento (Note i) Michael Casamentot & (Fizi) 376 - - - 376
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith HE%E 905 - - - 905
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis BFERELE 875 - - = 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric WMEELE 873 - - - 873
Total for 2017 —T T FEE 3,896 6,549 1,675 21 12,141
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Retirement
Salariesand  Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees other benefits bonuses contributions Total
Fek ERAEH
e iz H| DRt an ATElZ 30 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TEL TERL TERT TEL
Name of Director BN
Mr. Chan Chew Keak, Billy DRGSR E 491 - - - 491
Mr. Chan Sai Wai (Note i) PRt (Pt - 11,775 15,000 13 26,788
Mr. Ge Su EHxAE - 3513 524 2 4,039
Mr. Jerzy Czubak Jerzy CzubakeE 376 - - - 376
Mr. Liu Shun Fai BRERLE - 2592 648 18 3,258
Mr. Michael Casamento (Note i) Michael Casamento? 4
k) 188 - = = 188
Mr. Ng Sai Kit (Note i) RtASE (Hin) - - - - -
Mr. Tay Ah Kee, Keith BERE 905 - - - 905
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Ellis EfsRELLE 875 - _ _ 875
Mr. Oh Choon Gan, Eric EELE 873 - _ _ 873
Total for 2016 “ERFRE 3,708 17,880 16,172 3 37,793
Note: ()  Appointed on 24 June 2016 e : () RZZE—ARESNA-THEBEZRET

(i) Resigned on 25 September 2016

(iii)  Resigned on 21 January 2016

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

iy RZZE—XNFLAZ-THBET

iy RZZE—R"F—AZ+—HEME
ARNBESREECHEATHERFE
HAFEANERRERERORNRRBHELN

TOERAKERBNERRS « TH=X
BRTERKERBEEERNER -
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The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year include
two (2016: three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2016:

two) individuals are set out below:

FAREEZAERSHALTETERS
(ZF—R%F: =8) REF KEZWHE
REE EXFIRZOMA - Hp=% (ZF
—REF MR AL ZEEEINT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Basic salaries and other benefits HAFHE R EMEF 9,707 12,000
Discretionary bonuses B IEIEAL 438 20,000
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  ERER|FTE| 2 3k 23 18
10,168 32,018
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e FTHIEHE :
Number of individuals
B AANE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001,%8 JT £ 3,500,00078 7T 1 =
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,00178 JL £ 5,500,0007% 7T 1 =
HK$16,000,001 to HK$16,500,000 16,000,001 7T £ 16,500,000/ 7T = 2

FAYBEEHEXRERBEAHEZ
ZHE o AN REBEY E NS TERA
EFABRHFAL FRRIMAREKHE
SINAIR Z BB SR BERL 2 B -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the year. In addition, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office.
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The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution of
HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") are members of a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the required

contributions under the scheme.

AEERBEEERGELTERFE GO A
BEMBEERBERIBHMEAEERS
g ([BEE]) - AEERBES S
ZHRTIRBEREHF SR TE Z5%TE -
BEEEGALRRI5008T - (EHRTE
ERFEIHIE - HFANEREREME -

AEERFEARKME ([HE)) KZZ
MEBLARZIEES R THBNERE FR

il

&
RAFTEKE - WEMBRRANRER
EAXHFeRIEZETAD LAEFRENK
SAEHFTERBRARBMES - T WK
FFEGHEEELSHERRMBRA RAREK
BRAEE ZRINBENER - WEHEBER R
PR REBAREF B 2 —RERREE
TR R o

\

2017 2016
—ZE—+t#F —E—R
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
PRC corporate income tax and H B PTG R TR IE
withholding tax
— Provision for the year — REEEE 130,784 132,096
— Under/(over)-provision in prior year — FEEREBTIR,(GBERE) 52 (2,094)
Other deferred tax (Note 25) H A RER IR (FEE25) (557) (1,330)
130,279 128,672

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group has

no assessable profit in Hong Kong for the years.

R ERFEAEEER AT ERRT G
A R LA B RSB 34
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Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in respect

thereof.

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“New CIT Law"), which
became effective from 1 January 2008, the standard corporate income
tax rate is 25% except for subsidiaries which are qualified as High and
New Tech Enterprise and would be entitled to a reduced corporate

income tax rate of 15%.

The relevant tax rates for the Company’s PRC subsidiaries range from

15% to 25%.

Further under the New CIT Law, from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of business in the PRC or
which have an establishment or place of business in the PRC but whose
relevant income is not effectively connected with the establishment
or a place of business in the PRC, will be subject to withholding tax at
the rate of 10% (unless reduced by treaty) on various types of passive
income such as dividend derived from sources within the PRC. As the
entire Group's foreign-invested enterprises are directly or indirectly
wholly or partially owned by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary, a
rate of 5% is applicable to the calculation of this withholding tax on
dividends according to Comprehensive Arrangement for the Avoidance
of Double Taxation on Income and Prevention of Fiscal Evasion between
PRC and Hong Kong, and Guoshihan (2009) No. 81.
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A reconciliation between the income tax expenses and the product of

S Sx B AT E MR A B AR K 218

profit before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rate is as follows: ZQEEQDT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Profit before tax Tt B4 ) 532,928 357,768
Tax at applicable tax rate of 25% REAB 5% EHBIIE 133,232 89,442
Tax effect of share of profit of associates JEIGEEE R ER N 2 B8 (4,130) (8,224)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBBAZ R E (25,774) (12,919)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AS 2 B2 34,719 99,884
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary RERLRMEER MG E
differences 2,981 3
Tax effect of unused tax loss not recognised NERAE A IBER 2 HETE 2,261 4614
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not PRBAETERRZTIBEEEZ
previously recognised B = (651)
Tax effect of tax concession MBER BB E (45,689) (60,857)
Under/(over)-provision in prior year FEEBETR GBEEE) 52 (2,094)
Withholding tax TEFIE 32,627 19,465
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ EEM FEAEREE 2 B A A
operating in other jurisdictions FriEA TR R & = 9
Income tax expenses FTiSfifE X 130,279 128,672
(a) Basic earnings per share of HK37.2 cents (2016: HK18.9 cents) is @) fREARRBFI72EBMW (ZF — X

calculated based on the Group's profit attributable to the owners of
the Company for the year of approximately HK$345,785,000 (2016:
HK$175,589,000) and the weighted average number of shares of
approximately 929,047,000 ordinary shares in issue during the year

(2016: 929,047,000 shares).

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did

not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares as the exercise

price of the share options was higher than the average market price

of the Company’s shares during the years ended 31 December 2016

and 2017.

F 1898 1l) HIEAFEZARA
A A FE1h AN & B % F 49345,785,000

B oo (= & — 75 4F 175,589,000
L) RFERBEITEBR 2 NEFY
% £x %@929,047,0001& (ZZ— X &F:
929,047,0004% ) &

HRARAREBE_T—R"ER_FT

—ti-&—:ﬂ:ﬂ——ﬁti&ﬁq,ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
BUTEERTSHTHRERS B
AR B B AT (A FE S E R A - M
E2J|SREERT
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A final dividend of HK7.3 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31

December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$67,820,000 is proposed

by the Board subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting. The proposed final dividend is not recognised

as liabilities at 31 December 2017.

EFeEBRRBBE_T—tF+=A=
T—HIEFERBRETREBRIAE
fill » & # 567,820,000 7T+ HEEFRERL
FEERRBAFRE EHE - #BIRRHAKS
VEERAR-_T—tF+-_A=+—8

ZAfE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interim dividend paid of HK7.6 cents BREE R B F 8T Bk 681
(2016: HK5.4 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—RF - 54%4l) 70,608 50,169
Interim special dividend of Nil I £ IR B R HR R 1 BR B
(2016: HK2.7 cents) per ordinary share (Z=—REF:
BRE@mAR2.7840) = 25,084
Proposed final dividend of HK7.3 cents PR R 2R B AR B A% 7 3781
(2016: HK2.2 cents) per ordinary share (ZZT—RF : 2280) 67,820 20,439
Proposed final special dividend of Nil I R B R E R R AR B
(2016: HK1.1 cents) per ordinary share (ZZE—REF:
R wAR BN - 10,220
138,428 105,912
Note: Dividends proposed for the year 2015 and paid during the year ended Mad: —T-—RAFEERRBINBE=T—X

31 December 2016 comprised: (i) approximately HK$6,503,000 being
final dividend of HKO0.7 cent per ordinary share; and (ii) approximately
HK$61,317,000 being final special dividend of HK6.6 cents per ordinary

share.
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NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e ISR MR

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.9% - BERZE
Leasehold Plant and Office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total

g7 RENRKE HEREE  WOZRG 8§ KEIR it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TERL TERn TR TER TER TR TER

Cost HA

At 1 January 2016 RZF-7~E-A-R 167464 315 1087831 37487 33455 5275 1410214
Acquisition of subsidiaries LN 39455 - 24234 % 25 = 64,042
Additions FE 685 342 13218 1479 3,989 51758 71471
Transfers &1 = 45 2678 139 = (27.119) =
Disposals/write off e /Wi 9812) - (41,601) (2686) (3671) - (57.770)
Eichange differences EXER (10773) (1,716) (61,063) (2060) (1775) (4047) (81434)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZA=1-0 187,019 2993 1,048,897 35714 32253 el 1406523
Additions hE 20 1904 19626 1019 49 46,46 69444
Transfers 14 54671 - 43967 313 174 (99,125) -
Disposals/uwrite off & /Wi - (449) (12,160) (1267) 4781) - (18657)
Exchange differences EXZER 16843 2414 84,181 2804 2383 4187 112812
At 31 December 2017 RZZ-tE+=A=+-R 258733 33792 1184511 38563 30478 4025 1570122
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ 23HTERBE

At 1 January 2016 RZF-7~E-A-R 45413 26,905 631,632 26836 20614 - 751400
Charge for the year ERilk 8449 1780 13751 3047 3819 - 90,846
Disposals/write off HE /H (7.904) - (38,150) (2,508) (3,304) - (51,866)
Exchange differences EiZE (2529) (1,546) (36,490) (1489) (1142) = (43,194)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=+-H 4343 27,139 630743 25887 19,987 - 747,186
Charge for the year ERih 11,585 1375 55,183 2736 3733 - 74612
Disposals/write off e /Wi - (450) (8,785) (1,089) (4182) - (14506)
Eichange differences EXZR 3867 2075 51491 2,106 1558 - 61,197
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+-A=1-H 5888 30,239 728632 29640 2109 - 868489
Carrying amount BEE

At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+-B=1-A 199,851 3553 455,879 8943 938 24,025 701633
At 31 December 2016 RZF-~ETZA=1-A 143,589 2784 418,154 9827 12,266 7 659337
The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC. REBZEFURPE -

At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of property, plant and RZT—tF+ZA=+—8 KEEK
equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans amounted to HEE X 586240008 L (ZE—RF : &)
approximately HK$8,624,000 (2016 Nil). ZWME BERESEEEREAREER

TREZEIRGS -
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NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B MR A MR

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

During the year, following a review of the actual and planned usage
of the machineries of the Group and based on the actual conditions
of the machineries, the Group changed the estimated useful lives
of certain machineries from 10 years to 20 years. As a result of this
change in accounting estimate, the depreciation charge decreased by
approximately HK$12,100,000 for the year 31 December 2017 and will
also decrease by approximately HK$3,954,000 for the year ending 31
December 2018.

15.PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

14.9% - RERRE (12)

FAN - AERBRBEBERIENRETEIE
AER BE THREMBEEAFEHH
FEERF - ARG ENED  E
EAR_E—+t&+-_A=1+—HLLEFE
A #912,1000008 7T c BEZT—\NF+
Z A=+ —HB EFE IR 443,954,000

JC ©

15. 78 E b1\

2017 2016

—E—tfF —E—RF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FERT FAT

At 1 January Ww—H—H 149,862 149,808
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT 8 2 &) = 16,263

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments B FH I + b 34 2 16 8 (4,448) (4,159)

Disposals e = (3,337)

Exchange differences PEHZEEE 11,642 (8,713)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 157,056 149,862
Current portion mENE D (4,618) (4,281)
Non-current portion ERENEL 5 152,438 145,581

The Group's prepaid land lease payments represent payments for land

use rights in the PRC under medium term leases.
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2017 2016

—ZT—tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FERT FHT

At 1 January R—H—H 2,540,547 2,609,320
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT 8 1 ) = 84,336
Exchange differences &5 ERE 200,263 (153,109)
At 31 December R+=—B=+—8H 2,740,810 2,540,547

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying

amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

EB AR EER KER DK
BHRXERNZEBAHNEREELSE
i - ERERMEEERN  BEREAEIE
L

2017 2016
—=E—+tF R

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FET

Printing of cigarette packages S EaEER 2,739,433 2,539,271
Manufacturing of transfer paper and EHBEREHNERE

laser film 1,377 1,276

2,740,810 2,540,547

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from their value
in use. The key assumptions for the value in use determination are
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross
margin and turnover during the period. The Group estimates discount
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. Budgeted gross
margin and turnover are based on past practices and expectations on

market developments.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the Directors for the next five years with

the residual period using the growth rate of 5%.

ReELEMMATRESEIRELERE
BET EBEEEAEEZIERRIER
FRE - ERELRHPAZBEENERE
B ARERBRREKFHEHERR
BEEARSELEM 25 ERR 2
MR AT TR R AR TR R - BEERN X
REXBARBBATHARENHHER
BE -

AEEREZHESRERABEEKES
HEBARRAFZSOMMREAE - Mk
THIR ARG R K% EH
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The rates used to discount the forecast cash flows are as follows: RERBRBRAR S RE 2 E ¢
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Printing of cigarette packages B8 B F R 14.49% 13.38%
Manufacturing of transfer paper and laser film 4% K 5 5 fR & 35 14.49% 13.38%
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Unlisted investments in the PRC: RAEAEZIEETRE

Share of net assets EBIEEEFE 131,294 105,800

Details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/  Particulars of

R-FB—t&+=
N

A=+—8 K&EEH

ZEBIT

Percentage of
interest held/

Name operation registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
ML, FrisREzs
=L 3 B EMERFE BB B EEER
Nanjing Sanlong Packing Co., Ltd PRC US$2,100,000 48%/48% Printing of cigarette
packages

MAR=EREERAR g 2,100,000% 7T 48%/48% BB BN

Qingdao AMVIG Shuncheng Packaging  PRC RMB33,000,000 51%/51% Manufacturing of transfer
Co., Ltd ("QDAMSC") paper and laser film
FERBIEHEEERAR T AR ¥33,000,000 519%/51% BRR R EN RS

(I EBIRH )

Although the Group owned more than 50% in QDAMSC, QDAMSC
is treated as an associate because the Group is only able to exercise
significant influence on the financial and operating policies of QDAMSC

as a consequence of contractual arrangements with other shareholders.
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The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for

using the equity method.

TRETAEEESKDEMAEERNM S L
TEANBERNRNSRE GRAEREA
R °

2017 2016
—ZT—tF —ET—X
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FHT
At 31 December: Rt+t=A=+—-81:

Carrying amount of interests EXEmE 131,294 105,800

Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=+—HLFE:
Profit from continuing operations REFFELEEL 2w T 16,521 32,895
Other comprehensive income Hih2mles 8,973 (6.175)
Total comprehensive income ZHEINRETE 25,494 26,720

As at 31 December 2017, the bank and cash balances of the Group's
associates in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$203,863,000 (2016: HK$132,135,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations.

R-_ZT—+&E+-_fF=+—8 A&£ER
FEZEERRNUARBIENRITRE
4R 5203,863,0008 70 (Z T — K ¢
132,135,000 7T) ° AR A BRBINEERER
FENEE SRR RAEE  EERNES
BHFTEFTHBR
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2017 2016

—ZT—tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FERT FHT

Available-for-sales financial assets AHECRERE 1,654 1,534
Deposits for acquisition of property, WEME  BEMRXEZEE

plant and equipment 16,543 9,741

Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WHENRB AR 2 ZE 30,000 -

48,197 11,275

Available-for-sales financial assets represent a club membership in the
PRC.

As no quoted market prices in an active market are available, the

available-for-sale financial assets are carried at cost less any identified

AHEEEREENRTBRZEMERE -

RIYEERTSRE - AZIHEESR
BERRABAEMATBREALR

impairment.
2017 2016
—ZT—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Raw materials B 94,641 62,785
Work in progress ERS 57,613 46,534
Finished goods SR T 123,497 87,500
275,751 196,819
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The general credit terms of the Group granted to its trade customers
range from one month to three months. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by the senior management. An aging analysis of trade

receivables, based on the invoice date, net of allowances, is as follows:

) ZBRE AT

AEBETHESRF ZHRERH—RNF
—E=AAR - AEEBAOFEBRRIZEDR
EEERYHIE SREEEENESHBY
s o BHRINEUR (IRHE B HIRINRE

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Current to 30 days BIEAE30H 403,524 396,160
31 to 90 days 31£290H 278,245 224,364
Over 90 days HBiEooH 66,773 63,866
Trade receivables B 5 ElzkE 748,542 684,390
Bills receivables FEUR R & 246,426 222,640
Other receivables — an associate E U RIE — —RE & AR 57,256 53,073
Other receivables — others Hibpelhziig — b 22,234 25,253
1,074,458 985,356
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An analysis of allowance for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables is

B EH AT YR B E 5 W TR 2 4 0 AT 1A

as follows: 3

HK$'000

FHET
At 1 January 2016 RN_ZT—R"F—H—H 40
Charge for the year FRHkR 21
Exchange differences ME N ZFE 3)
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RE+-A=+—H 58
Charge for the year FRHER 611
Exchange differences EHER 28
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tH+=A=+—H 697

As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of approximately
HK$66,773,000 (2016: HKS63,866,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is

no recent history of default. An aging analysis of these trade receivables

R—ZE—+E+-_A=+—8" 4
66,773,000 7T (= F — /N : 63,866,000/8
7T) 2B S REWFIED REERRE - ZF
REEETRAOVEERGCHEZBIER

is as follows: B - ZZEE HERRFEZRRSITHOT ¢
2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RK
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FHET
Up to 6 months =% NEA 49,802 39,413
Over 6 months B~ E A 16,971 24,453
66,773 63,866
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21.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH

BALANCES

Bank deposits of approximately HK$562,005,000 (2016: HK$638,095,000)
carry fixed interest rates ranging from 1.4% to 3.4% (2016: 1.0% to 7.8%)
thus exposing the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Bank deposits
of approximately HK$682,054,000 (2016: HK$944,562,000) carry floating
interest rates thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 32).

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances is an
amount of approximately HK$935,593,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HKS$1,157,556,000) denominated in RMB and kept in the PRC. Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment

of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

22.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

An aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of invoices, is as

follows:

NOTES TO THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.

22.

R B R A

EBEARITERRBITRES
=+

#9562,005,000 L (= & — X F:
638,095,000/ 7T.) Z R AT 1F IR N F1.4%
F34% (ZF — RN F 1.0%27.8%) Z
EMEFHE  MAKEEHAFEMNE
J& B > #9682,054,00058 JT (Z & — /N 4 ¢
944,562,000/ 7T) Z HRITIF IR F BN A5t
B HMASEEHRETEMNERAR - K
EEEEMRRITFERAEEMTIRITZ
T MEABFTAEERITEE ZIER
(MF3E32) »

IAEBBHRITERRRITRB S LR
ZHRERE-—HER-_Z—tF+ZA=
+ — B #7935,593,000/ 7T (Z T — /N & ¢
1,157,556,000%8 7T) < A R®EKIE - BaZK
BEENRTE ARBHBBINEERF
Bl SNEE Bl AR A R A5 TE - EERNEEE
REPTHR -

B2 REMENRE

BIEMNFIE (RBEEBHH) 2RI THN
T

2017 2016

—E—tF AN

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FAExT

Current to 30 days BNHAZ30H 284,605 249,945
31 to 90 days 31290H 235,343 201,870
Over 90 days HBiEooH 135,259 74,011
Trade payables B S EMIE 655,207 525,826
Dividend payable TR B 10 10
Other payables H b e~ 3008 173,950 216,262
829,167 742,098
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2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Bank loans — unsecured IRITE K — EIK I 1,466,760 2,001,285
Bank loans — secured IRITER — BIEMHE 3,597 =
1,470,357 2,001,285
The loans are repayable as follows: BEREHBAMT

On demand or within one year BREXRSE N —FR 3,597 704,834
In the second year <= = 1,296,451
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEFAT (BEEERTF) 1,466,760 =
1,470,357 2,001,285

Amount due for settlement within 12 months + —1{& B A% HAE & 2K I8
(shown under current liabilities) (Rr#aEEesR) (3,597) (704,834)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  +—1& B 14 B EiE & 7B 1,466,760 1,296,451
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The carrying amounts of the Group's loans are denominated in the

following currencies:

AEBERZ FRHAERATESE

2017 2016
—ZET—tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHExT FET

Bank loans RITER
— HK$ — BT 1,466,760 1,997,951
- RMB — AR 3,597 3,334
1,470,357 2,001,285

The effective interest rate at 31 December was as follows:

RtZA=1t—B2ZERANERNT :

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

Bank loans — unsecured RITE R — B 3.12% 3.79% — 11.88%
Bank loans — secured RITER — B 11.88% N/A i@

Bank loans of approximately HK$3,597,000 (2016: HK$3,334,000) are
arranged at the fixed interest rates and expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. Other bank loans are arranged at floating rates thus

exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

#9 43,597,000 7¢ (Z & — 754 : 3,334,000
BIL) ZIRITERIZEER R HERERE
EAZ A TEMNERR - EMR1TERIR
FERETE AEAEEARZREN
EMEE -
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NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b & TS SRR B 3E

24.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

154

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December:

24 TESMIT AR AFEE

RT-ZA=+—BRAFEFEZEENR

A& :
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Financial liabilities SHMAas
Derivative financial instruments under HHEHET2ITESRmT A
hedge accounting
Cash flow hedge - CCS Rensfh — IX BB 34,978 -
Analysed as: PRV
Current liabilities REEE 14,291 =
Non-current liabilities JEmEatE 20,687 -
34,978 -

The carrying amounts of the CCS are the same as their fair values.

Cash flow hedges

Since the functional currency of the Group is Renminbi, whereas a
substantial amount of its bank borrowings were denominated in
HKS, the Group has foreign currency exposure on HKS related to its
bank borrowings. At the same time, the Group has exposure to cash
flow risk of its variable rate HK$ bank borrowings. At the end of the
reporting period, the following CCS contracts are designated as hedging
instruments in respect of such foreign currency and interest rate

exposure.

The terms of the CCS contracts have been negotiated to match the

terms of the respective designated hedged items.
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Major terms of these contracts are as follows:

ZEAHEE]

RERETNANT

2017 Bt

Notional amount Maturity Foreign currency swaps Interest rate swaps

EREH | H s R == 1

HK$200,000,000 From 28 March 2017 to HKS$1.1280/RMB1 HKS$ 1 month HIBOR+1.5%
13 February 2020 for 6.19%

200,000,000 7T H-T—tF=A=+NB 112808 AR¥ 1T B —ERABBRT
BT FTF_A+=H FIZEHFEN1.5%H

6.19% 5 #

HK$200,000,000 From 28 April 2017 to HKS$1.1243/RMB1 HKS$ 1 month HIBOR+1.5%
13 February 2020 for 5.90%

200,000,000/ 7T BZZT—tFWOAZ+NAR 1124387 AR 1T BT —EAEFBRT

2-FE-_TF-A+=H

During the current year, fair value loss of HK$10,090,000 have been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
cash flow hedging reserve and are expected to be reclassified to profit
or loss at various dates in the coming three years after the end of the
reporting period, the period in which the repayment of bank borrowings

and interests are expected to occur.

During the year, gain and losses transferred from equity to profit or
loss are included in other income of approximately HK$24,888,000 and
finance costs of approximately HK$12,166,000.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categories into three levels
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

R E01.5%E8
5.90%5 #

AR + 10,090,000 L2 A FEEEE
RHE A 2 E U A R R IR R 8RR
HARRF MBEMHZELFEEEBERR
HHRERE="FENHEEE (NEH
FEERRTERENEZHME) -

RER AESEREZER WS REIE
2 at A H U A %) 524,888,000 7T K BB
B N4 /12,166,0007 7T ©

RFERTHLEENFAEBERNEERFXR
SZPHEEEM KB ERAERE
N2 B - U TAFEFEREDRAS
RARFEAFEZBETZBABEE D
BB A HERBED

F—RBAZE Rt EBHAKER N

BEMHEREERABERERT S ZHRE
(RIGRE) o
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Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances

that caused the transfer.

The following table presents the level in fair value hierarchy, valuation

techniques and inputs used:

F_RBARE: REENABERAM
B BR 2BARE (E—RABENRK
BERIM)

EZRBARE  AERAEHTURE
AR -

AEENBRENSEEBNEHHIBR
BL R A7 B RERE ASE A3 EE AR
R FERE -

TREINAFEER  HETERAER
GOEIN ¢

Fair value at  Fair value Valuation
31 December 2017  hierarchy techniques Inputs
R=ZB—tF+=A
=t+—B2ZAF¥E -AFEER FKESE BWARBE
HK$'000
FHET
Recurring fair value measurements:
REMAFERTE:
Financial liabilities £ B & &
Derivative financial instruments
MTHEe®MIA
Cash flow hedge - CSS 34,978 Level 2 Discounted cash Market interest rates
BeRnah — XX G E_H flow method (i.e. HIBOR) and foreign
HRBE exchange rates for
A RMB and HKS$

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no transfer of fair
value measurement between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the financial

liabilities.

156 JBRRHERR H R 2 5 AMVIG Holdings Limited

MIZF R (BB BIRIT
REFEMNE) &
AR #E NS TTRIINE
[Ex
HE_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HI-HH "

PRBESE R F_ARE=HMBzA
FEELEER



The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group.

TERAXKEMERZELERBARE -

Revaluation
of property,
plant and Withholding

equipment tax Total

EXrtyEN
BWERRE SCEERE] et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHER FHET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—HA—H 8,279 5,462 13,741
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B F B A A 915 = 915
Payment BN - (19,486) (19,486)
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss (5t A18%),/ BBk (1,330) 19,465 18,135
Exchange differences ME 5 = RA (439) (300) (739)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RFE+-_HA=+—H 7,425 5,141 12,566
Payment INE-N = (34,892) (34,892)
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss (5t AIB28), BB MR (557) 32,627 32,070
Exchange differences PEH %8 565 318 883

At 31 December 2017 R=-—ZEB—tF+=A

=+—H 7,433 3,194 10,627

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$50,857,000 (2016: HK$46,291,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$43,168,000 (2016:
HK$35,697,000) that will expire in five years. Other tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax liabilities of
approximately HK$54,371,000 (2016: HK$64,349,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the temporary differences associated with
undistributed profits of subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend
policy of its subsidiaries and it has been determined that these

undistributed profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

RB|EBMR AEBRAEREROFIA
/& 18 49 A50,857,000/ 7L (Z T — X F ¢
46,291,000% 70) A] AR EE 2 ) o B
RAR MR GRS - BEEEHIESE
JUER - BEARERBIEBEZEEDY
/43,168,000 7T (=& — /X £ : 35,697,000
L) SERAFREE - HMBIEEBR
A AR AR A 8 o

RIEHRR - REMBRF R IR EFE
B ERERENABRZEERIEAELY
7354,371,000/8 7T (ZF — /X 4F © 64,349,000
BIL) - B ARNEBEEHIEK B A R R SR
KEBEZERDEENENRRRKTE
DK °
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Number of shares Amount
iidvipgE| &8
‘000 HK$'000
Fh& FHT
Authorised: JEE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEIOEB L EBR
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 RZBE-—RERZZT—+F
+-—A=+—8 2,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEEITZ L@
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZE—RE—H—H"
31 December 2017 ZE-RE+ZA=+T—BK
—E—+F+-A=+—H 929,047 9,290

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and

equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back
shares, raise new debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital,
share premium, non-controlling interests, retained earnings and other

reserves) other than debit amounts recognised in equity.
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During 2017, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged since 2007,

was to maintain a capital structure with a lowest weighted average cost

of capital. The debt-to-adjusted capital at 31 December 2017 and at 31

December 2016 were 4.6% and 9.7% respectively.

—ELFFAN AREZEE (BZEE
+tHER—ERE)  DH#F—EERMET
HARTERREKEZERERE - RZF
—+tF+_A=+—BAERZE—R"EF+=
R=+—HZ2EBELAERERLESF
74.6%8%29.7% ©

2017 2016

—ZT—tHF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHT

Total borrowings BIER 1,470,357 2,001,285
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERBEeEEY (1,242,769) (1,581,018)
Net debt B ERE 227,588 420,267
Total equity I BRE 4,058,628 3,502,391
Add: debit amounts recognised in equity e RiERER RS 851,121 841,031
Adjusted capital 4R TR E IR 4,909,749 4,343,422
Debt-to-adjusted capital B B B A R 4.6% 9.7%

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to

maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float

of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report from the share

registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing the non-public

float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2017: 52.4% (2016: 52.4%) of

the shares were in public hands.

SMERIE AN 2 HE— B AR R R AK B

NRBFFRERDREISW - AMERFH OB
Frz Emls - AEESERGRERD
BEELTRBRIEARBREZEREN

B EETBNREZRE - R-F—+

F+-_B=+—8 :524% (ZZT—RF:
524%) RIDEAARALES -
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2017 2016
—E—tfF SN
HK$’000 HK%'O@
FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRE - -
Investments in subsidiaries RSB AR ZIEE 1 1
1 1
Current assets REEE
Due from subsidiaries A NG ] 4,147,220 4,702,039
Bank and cash balances R1T RIS R 295,853 12,587
Other current assets B R EE 5,125 358
4,448,198 4,714,984
TOTAL ASSETS BmEE 4,448,199 4,714,985
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves BAR #E
Share capital R AN 9,290 9,290
Reserves i 2,928,857 2,699,319
Total equity R 2,938,147 2,708,609
LIABILITIES &
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Bank borrowings SRITIE R 1,466,760 1,296,451
Derivative financial instruments PTEEHMIA 20,687 =
1,487,447 1,296,451
Current liabilities REBEE
Current portion of bank borrowings RITERZ R - 701,500
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 14,291 =
Other current liabilities Hitmeh & & 8,314 8,425
22,605 709,925
Total liabilities EEL% 1,510,052 2,006,376
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzkBEBEE 4,448,199 4,714,985
Net current assets REBEEFE 4,425,593 4,005,059
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRARBERS 4,425,594 4,005,060

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2018

Ge Su
EH

Executive Director

BITEE
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Executive Director

HITEFE



The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein are NEB 7 HESBELEBEHE NG
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other AEEAEMEERERRGAER
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of changes in BABHR o
equity.
Employee Foreign
share-based currency
Share compensation Hedging translation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
DRHXAZ
ROEE BEEMERE  BAEE HEARRE  REERN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TATL TATL TARL ThRL TAT TATL
At 1 January 2016 R-E—E—f-A 2517392 19220 = 318431 3826 2,898,869
Total comprehensive income for the year  AFE2ERHEE - - - (160,940) 104,463 (56477)
Dividend paid for 2015 (Note 13) IRZF-RERE (Hi13) - = = - (67,820) (67,820)
Dividend paid for 2016 (Note 13) IRZF-R~ERE (F313) - - - - (75.253) (75.253)
Changes in equity for the year AEERRE - - - (160,940) (38,610) (199,550)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA=+-A 2517392 19220 - 157,491 5216 2699319
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2ERHEE - - (10,090) 216,987 123,908 330,805
Dividend paid for 2016 (Note 13) TRZF-A~FRE (FiE13) - - - - (30,659) (30,659)
Dividend paid for 2017 (Note 13) FRZF-+ERE (Fi13) - - - - (70,608) (70,608)
Transfer of reserve upon lapse of BRESIBNREER
share options - (16,731) - - 16,731 -
Changes in equity for the year TEERRE - (16,731) (10,090) 216,987 39,372 229,538
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1-8 2,517,392 2,489 (10,090) 374,478 44,588 2,928,857
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(i)

(ii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
the share premium account of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group comprises (a) the amount
that arose as a result of the reorganisation implemented and
represented the difference between the nominal value of the
aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore; and (b)
the excess of the fair value of consideration payable for the
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiaries over the

decrease in the carrying value of the non-controlling interests.

(iii) Employee share-based compensation reserve

The employee share-based compensation reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to directors and employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for employee share-based compensation benefits in Note 3(I)

to the consolidated financial statements.

(iv) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments
used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition
of the hedged cash flows in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for cash flow hedges in Note 3(u) to the

consolidated financial statements.

JBRRHERR H R 2 5 AMVIG Holdings Limited

() BRi7EE

RIEHSHESREDE - AAFRN
BERZESAHDIKTARAR
R ESZEEFE SRS AR
AARBBENEEELNRAEES
BERCDIHZET -

(i) ¥5AE

AEBZEFHREREQEETE
AR A A HOFRIE S SR AR IR EE AR P I
BB QRARA s MEBBER
AR BB M TT 2 RAEELZ
Z8 Rb)EMNBEEEHE AR
ZRSMERRE R TERBBIFES
MRESRE(ER D 2 5 -

(iii) BB 7317 2 IEE B = 1# 1

VAR 32 5 2 1 B Bl & R f 1R AR 1%
BhAR B B 5 R I A3 () A BR 1D 2
2 18 B B 18 FI P SR AN B0 & 51 IR
RER  RTAEEEERESH
RTEBEBREZERSMGFABEZ
NFE -

(iv) ¥t 7 1E

HhFEERERERELITER
ZEMT AR E R E)FHE
BREn - AR RER
BEIRFER - XA MEBLIP BT
RIBHEE P IBHRERME3(WATERS
ZERTBOREIE ©



|

28.RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
Note 3(d) (iii) to the consolidated financial statements.

(vi) Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the Group’s share of
associate’s post-acquisition movements in revaluation reserve
and is dealt in accordance with accounting policy in Note 3(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

(vii) Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves, which are non-distributable, are
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations in the
PRC.

29.EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

BENEFITS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, directors, substantial
shareholders of each member, associates of directors or substantial
shareholders and trustees of any trust pre-approved by the Board of the
Company and the Company'’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective
on 16 June 2014 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will

remain in force for 10 years from that date.
No share option was granted under the Scheme after it was approved.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 10 March 2004
(the 2004 Scheme”) expired on 9 March 2014, however, the outstanding
share options granted under 2004 Scheme shall continue to be valid and
exercisable during the prescribed exercise period in accordance with
2004 Scheme.
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Details of the share options outstanding under 2004 Scheme during the FERNE_ZEENEAZ TEHARITEZER

year are as follows: BB
2017 2016
S —Tn

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

share average share average

options exercise price options exercise price

b5 I 19

BREHE TEE BREHE TEE

HK$ HKS

BT BT

At 1 January w—A—8 13,287,701 3.64 13,287,701 3.64

Exercised during the year RERTTHE - - - B

Lapsed during the year RERKH (11,492,752) 3.64 = =

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,794,949 3.64 13,287,701 3.64

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RERA] F1T{E 1,794,949 3.64 13,287,701 3.64

The options were fully vested to the grantees as of 31 December 2017. R-E—+FE+-_A=+—H BEE#ED

TERBARA °

Options will be lapsed if the employees leave the Group. MEEEHMAER  BAREBE2 R -
No share options were exercised during the year. The options FRIEEREETE - NBERES
outstanding at the end of the reporting period have a weighted average BF M ARITIE 2 BB FE 2 INE T FIp A 4
remaining contractual life of 3.58 years (2016: 4.58 years) and the FHA358F (T — /N 1 458%F) - 171F
exercise price is HK$3.64 (2016: HK$3.64). BR3.648TT (ZT—NF  36487T) ©
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The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement

of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

TRARAEERELTHELEZEEE

1B “%ﬁ%&#ﬁﬁ”@°ﬂﬁﬁ@§
EzRBEDARBEeREIEKESRER
REBZGEReRERDERMERY
REREZBEE -

1 January Cash Interest ~ Amortised Exchange 31 December

2017 flows expenses cost  difference 2017

“E-tf

—B-tE t=5

—A—-H ReRE  FEMX  ##Hx  EXEE  =t-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET FHET FAET TAET FAET

Bank borrowings (Note 23) BT (MFE23) 2,001,285 (539,298) (30,287) 39,368 (711) 1470357

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material related party

transactions during the year:

Rt SR A M mRE MR TR E
B REERAFEBETUTE
REABBALRS -

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&ET FHT

Purchases from an associate A — B N B ER BB 235,020 206,200

Note: The purchases from an associate were made under normal
commercial terms.

The key management personnel of the Company comprised all
directors, details of their remuneration are disclosed in Note 9 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Mt m—fEEE A RRBRE RS
FEIRFETT

AABIMWETEEBAEBREMESE
= HEMASREE P HRERW
RIFEE o
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31.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31.BAEALRS (&)
(c) At the end of the reporting period, the following balances with (c)

2
related parties were included in: FEg

2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FAT
Trade and other receivables: B 5 I E Ath & W RIE
An associate —EE LR A 57,256 53,073
Trade and other payables: B 5 REAFERFIR
An associate — it QA 65,789 42,264
Non-controlling shareholders FEAE B M AR R 14,387 13,336
The amounts due from/to an associate/non-controlling FEUR  FE T — B & R ) FEIE
shareholders are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of RERBEREER  2ERTEEE
repayment. BRE .
32.BANKING FACILITIES 32.R1TEE
As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, banking facilities of the Group are RZE—RFRZE—tF+ZRA=+—
mainly secured by the charge over certain bank deposits (Note 21), H AEEZRITEEFTZENUNETRITRHE
property, plant and equipment (Note 14), personal guarantee given K(EE21) - % - BB KRB (FisEi4)
by independent third parties and corporate guarantees given by the ZER BAE=FREZEAEZERER
Company, certain subsidiaries and an independent third party. DA ATHBRARR —BBLE=FIR
2 DEIERIEERR
33.COMMITMENTS 33. 7K
As at 31 December 2017 the Group had the following commitments: RZZE—tF+ZA=+—0  x&EEZ
EPET
(a) Operating lease commitments (@) KREHEAE
The Group leases certain of its office and factory premises under AEERBEEHERHEERSE T
operating lease arrangements. The original lease terms for the office RERBEME - BENRERKE
and factory premises range from one year to ten years. WEZRTHPNTF—E+F -
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Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BETAREECEHEEAI N 2 RK

operating leases are as follows: =EHESLRBEHT :
2017 2016
—=E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHERT FET
Within one year —FR 12,433 20,369
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ E-FEZERE (BEEEME) 44,072 11,522
After five years hF% 909 2,813
57,414 34,704
2017 2016
—=E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Contracted but not provided for: 2 ETAMBARBHE -
Acquisition of property, plant and BEWE  BWENMKRE

equipment 37,662 30,429

At 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (2016: Nil).

The Group has two reportable segments under HKFRS 8 as follows:

- Printing of cigarette packages
- Manufacturing of transfer paper and laser film

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products. They are managed separately because each business
requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include corporate administrative
expenses. Segment assets do not include goodwill, available-for-sale
financial assets, corporate bank balances, prepayments and deposits and
other receivables for general administrative use. Segment liabilities do
not include bank borrowings, other payables and accruals for general
administrative use and derivative financial instruments.

R-T—t+F+-RA=+—B AKEEHEIL
BEAEAKARE (ZF—NRF : §) -

AEBRBEBVBREEIESHEOEAT
S E2 D6

— BE R K ENR
—ERAREN RS

AEBEZAZ2RDBRERTRERZ K
BERFSEL - HNBEXEBHENRZ M
RIIGHEERE  MRSEEVBLER -

RED MG ET R ELR A M MR M ES
Frigtey —2 - D HBRETEBRERTR
MX - nHEETEBEEE  AIHEED
WMEE CERTAES ANKERES
R—RITERA® EMEKRIER - D EE
BEABREBITER  —RITBARZEM
FENRREEAERAMTESRTA -
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Information about reportable segment profit, assets and liabilities:

BERAAZKO M2 BEERARZE

Manufacturing  Manufacturing
Printing of Printing of of transfer of transfer
cigarette Cigarette paper and paper and
packages packages laser film laser film Total Total
BRAR BRHR
BEALOR SERROR  BAESE  SRRE @t &t
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-LF CERF . CEER SRR SRtR SRR
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT THEL TR FHET TARL THEL
Year ended 31 December BET-A=1+-HLEE
Revenue from external customers — RESNBEF 2 Mz 2,416,802 2516854 31,514 3453 2,448,316 2,551,386
Segment profit AE &R 485,867 550,261 5,216 6,474 491,083 556,735
Interest income FBUA 11,957 16,429 329 288 12,286 16,717
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE (77,753) (91,320) (415) 612) (78,168) (91,932)
Share of profit of associates (b B AR R 13,417 29117 3,104 3778 16,521 32,895
Income tax expenses FEHRAY (96,896) (108,696) (431) (512) (97,327) (109,208)
Additions to segment REDHIATHEE
non-current assets 68,767 150,144 572 618 69,339 150,762
As at 31 December BT=A=t+-H
Segment assets PEEE 3,169,028 3,165,214 68,321 65,143 3,237,349 3,230,357
Segment liabilities PHEE (847,989) (753,268) (3,772) (2,902) (851,761) (756,170)
Interests in associates REERA B 96,005 76077 35,289 29723 131,294 105,800
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Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

EHEAZ2WMH BB
BE -

w BERABBZY

2017 2016
—B—tfF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of reportable segments  A] 23R 5 P18 54858 491,083 556,735
Other profit or loss HhiEm (88,434) (327,639)
Consolidated profit for the year REELE BT 402,649 229,096
Assets EE
Total assets of reportable segments AIE|MOHEELRE 3,237,349 3,230,357
Goodwill EES 2,740,810 2,540,547
Available-for-sale financial assets A E SR EE 1,654 1,534
Other assets HEm&EE 459,158 519,067
Consolidated total assets SAEBEE 6,438,971 6,291,505
Liabilities =N
Total liabilities of reportable segments AIE2mo A aFEERE (851,761) (756,170)
Other liabilities HihafE (1,528,582) (2,032,944)
Consolidated total liabilities RERAE (2,380,343) (2,789,114)
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Over 90% of the Group's revenue and assets are derived from customers

and operations based in the PRC and accordingly, no further analysis of

AEBEBON K E R EERBMRAFEHZE
EREE EAhTEE—FSHERAERZ

the Group's geographical information is disclosed. & BRI DT °
Revenue from major customers: KATFERE 2N
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Printing of cigarette packages 18 5 5% E Rl
Customer A ZFH 523,830 534,110
Customer B BE L 493,140 441,944
Customer C Z2ER 323,036 371,934
Customer D Z2PT 313,962 564,176

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as

R-ZE—+F+_A=+—"H TEWNE

follows: ATEENT :
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation/ paid-up share capital/ Percentage of ownership
Name registration and operation  registered capital interest/profit sharing Principal activities
HMRL/ BRARBARRE FlbEAESR /
2 EMREELE ERER BENEIEIL TEEK
Direct Indirect
EE G
AMVIG Group Limited British Virgin Islands (‘BVI") Ordinary HK$1,000 100% - Investment holding
BNEEARAR EERNHE LiA%1,000% 7T 100% - REBR
((ZBRxEE])
AMVIG Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$6,060,100 - 100%  Investment holding
BRRERRAA &k 806,060,100 7T - 100%  RERR
Beijing Leigh-Mardon Pacific PRC Registered capital - 83%  Printing of cigarette
Packaging Co, Ltd. USD13,000,000 packages
("Beijing LMPP") (Note a)
FRBEHRTFRRERAT il FEE A513,000,000% T - 8%  BEAKER

(MEmRER) (Hia)
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Place of incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid-up share capital/

Percentage of ownership

Name registration and operation  registered capital interest/profit sharing Principal activities
ERAL/ BRIRBERE/ EkEERE /
8 EMREXHE BTN begilt ValEpil o TEEH
Direct Indirect
ER 5824
Bellgate International Limited BvI Ordinary HK$509,040,001 = 100%  Investment holding
Bellgate International Limited EBRIES T@R509,040001 87 = 100%  BERK
Charm Profit Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding
BREEERAR £ TRRIEL - 100%  REHR
Dongguan KWG Colour Printing PRC Registered capital = 100%  Printing of cigarette
Co, Ltd. ('DG KWG")" (Note b) HK$40,000,000 packages
ZERVABRAR i AR - 100%  BEAKER
(RZZRI)* (W3tb) 4000000087
Famous Plus Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 = 100%  Investment holding
EREEERAR &k L@kI00ET - 00% REZR
Glory Express International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 = 100%  Investment holding
AR ERAR A LEmAT - 100% RAZR
Hangzhou Weicheng Printing PRC Registered capital = 100%  Printing of cigarette
Co, Ltd. ("HZ Weicheng") (Note c) USD10,000,000 packages
HMERERIERAR e AR - 100%  BELKDR
(Mumept ) (Ritsic) 10,000,000%7C
Hubei Jinghua Colour Printing PRC Registered capital - 60%  Printing of cigarette
Co, Ltd. ("HBJH')* (Note d) RMB30,000,000 packages
M RERHARAT M FMERARK - 60%  BEDEER
(T mE]) * (W) 30,000,0007C
Jingle Midas Limited BVI Ordinary USD100 - 100%  Investment holding
ERERAT RBRNES EERI0ET - 100% REHKR
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36.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

172

36.EEMBEAT (&)

Issued and fully

Place of incorporation/ paid-up share capital/ Percentage of ownership
Name registration and operation  registered capital interest/profit sharing Principal activities
ERAL/ BRTRBERE/ ElkEERE /
8 EMREXBE EfEE begilt ValEpil o TEEH
Direct Indirect
E 5F
Kunming World Grand Innovation PRC Registered capital - 100%  Printing of cigarette
Printing Co,, Ltd. USD7,500,000 packages
("kunming World Grand") (Note )
ERERMANKERAR ((BARR]) (Kie) HE AR - 100%  BEAKER
7,500,000% T
Leigh-Mardon Pacific Packaging Pte Ltd. Singapore Ordinary 5G$18,836,040 = 100%  Investment holding
Leigh-Mardon Pacific Packaging Pte Ltd. g L1E18836,0408T 1% T - 100% RAZR
Mega Vision Enterprises Limited BVI Ordinary USD1 = 100%  Investment holding
Mega Vision Enterprises Limited EBRENES LRkET - 100% RAER
Polywin (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding
g4 (B%) BRAA &k ERRIAT - 00% RERR
Qingdao Leigh-Mardon Packaging PRC Registered capital - 60%  Printing of cigarette
Co, Ltd. ("Qingdao LMPP") (Note f) USD15,515,000 packages
FEREURKERAF Gl AR - 60%  BEDHEER
(FE&R5%) (B 1551500057
World Grand Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$15,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BREEEERAR &k 88150000007 - 100% RERR
Xi'an Great Sky Laser Hologram PRC Registered capital - 51%  Manufacturing of
Co, Ltd. ("Xi'an Hologram")* (Note g) RMB7,140,000 laser film
AR ARBKREGERAF i FMERARK - 51%  RATREE
(MEREE ) (g 7,140,007
Xinhong Hong Kong Investment Co,, Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 60%  Investment holding
ELERRABRAA A LA 10,0007 - 60% REHEK
Xinhong International Investment Limited BVI Ordinary USD100 - 60%  Investment holding
BRERRERRAR ABRUES EERI0ET - 60% RELBR
Zhangjiakou Xuanhua New North Printing & PRC Registered capital - 60%  Printing of cigarette
Decoration Company Limited ("NNP")# (Note h) RMB110,000,000 packages
KROME (AL HRER i HERARS - 60%  BEDEER
BREMRR (TFLAER) * (Hrth) 110,000,007
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36.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(€)

Beijing LMPP is a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise with an
operating period of 50 years commencing from 12 May 1995.

DG KWG is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an operating period of 25
years commencing from 15 February 2007.

HZ Weicheng is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an operating period
of 30 years commencing from 30 March 1996.

HBJH is a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise with an operating
period of 27 years commencing from 12 March 2008.

Kunming World Grand is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with an
operating period of 20 years commencing from 7 March 2002.

Qingdao LMPP is a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise with an
operating period of 30 years commencing from 19 May 1993.

Xi'an Hologram is a sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise with an
operating period of 20 years commencing from 4 December 2000.

NNP is a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise with an operating
period of 30 years commencing from 10 January 2005.

The English names of these companies represent management's best efforts
at translating the Chinese names of these companies as no English names
have been registered.

As at 31 December 2017, the bank and cash balances of the Company’s

subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$935,593,000 (2016: HK$1,157,556,000). Conversion of RMB into

foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control

Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of

Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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36.TEMEB LR (&)

ERBEHREPIIGEREDE  KLHA
—NANRFRA+ =BT AHSF -

ReBRAIEBELE  KEHH-ZT
+tE - A+AAREF AHSE -

MMNEKBINEBERE  KEHAE—NN
NEZRAZ=T R BHIZ0F

MUARERTHNRBLEDRE  KEHhm—
ZTN\F=ZA+ BT AEIF -

ERRERIINEBELE  KEHH_ZZT
—FZ AL REFRH20%F -

EERFIARTIIGERLEDE  RLHH
—NA=FA A+ NBEFTAH0F

BAREGRTIEIERERE  REME—
ZETF+ - A E R R0 -

AT ERIRTRIINEGEREDRSE - RLHH
—TTRE A+ BEFAH30%F -

ZENRWEESGEMAN - REXERTY
HEEBREEDXEEENBZMAK o

RZZE—+FE+-_A=+—H AARE
FEAOHBARIAARBEENRIT NG

& 4 82#5935,593,0008 7T (ZZF— /N4 ¢

1,157,556,000/ 7T) - AREE H A INE A
SR B ANEE IR R R AEE - SERME
EIRRTERRR ©
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37.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As announced by the Company on 22 September 2017, the Company,
AMVIG Investment Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
“the Purchaser”), Tesson Holdings Limited (“Tesson”) and Kith Limited
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tesson, “the Vendor”) entered into
the Sale and Purchase Agreement ("Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell (i) the entire issued share capital of
Outstanding Viewpoint Limited ("OVL’, together with its subsidiaries
and associates be collectively referred as “the Target Group”); and (ii) all
obligation, indebtedness and liabilities due, owing or incurred by the
Target Group to the Vendor as at the completion of the transaction (the
transaction is hereinafter referred to as “the Acquisition”), at a total cash
consideration of HK$700,000,000. OVL is an investment holding company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The Target Group is principally
engaged in the printing of high quality cigarette packages in the Yunnan
Province and Anhui Province in the PRC, through its investments in
Yunnan Qiaotong Package Printing Co., Ltd. and Anhui Qiaofeng Package
Printing Co., Ltd.

Following the satisfaction of all conditions precedent under the
Agreement, completion of the Acquisition took place on 2 January
2018. As the Group has not yet completed the fair value determination
of the acquired companies’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities at the date of completion of the Acquisition, the disclosure of

such amounts and amount of goodwill is impracticable.

38.COMPARATIVE FIGURES

174

Certain comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2016 have

been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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The following is a summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of

the Group prepared on the bases set out in Note below:

T XM AT B R

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

NTRARBZEXEREERABMRE - )%

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—B—tF —T-RE —T—hF —T-WOF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHT FHT FHT FHT
RESULTS E5
Turnover -
Printing of cigarette packages SiEaEHR 2,416,802 2,516,854 3,237,658 3,516,907 3,716,141
Manufacturing of transfer paper B AR K 55 5T IR
and laser film gk 31,514 34,532 27,024 38,132 46,236
2,448,316 2,551,386 3,264,682 3,555,039 3,762,377
Profit before share of profit of R FE(GEEZ A A]
associates Yis A A 2 S ) 516,407 324,873 500,055 607,493 674,137
Share of profit of associates bl NI | 16,521 32,895 33,587 37,019 41,523
Profit before tax T Ao A 532,928 357,768 533,642 644,512 715,660
Income tax expenses FTiSHiR X (130,279) (128,672) (211,380) (237,098) (276,130)
Profit for the year REERF 402,649 229,096 322,262 407,414 439,530
Attributable to: AT & A el -
Owners of the Company AAREAA 345,785 175,589 256,381 361,567 392,325
Non-controlling interests FEE R S 56,864 53,507 65,881 45,847 47,205
402,649 229,096 322,262 407,414 439,530
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-AZ=+—-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—2—+tF —T—RF —T—RHF —T—NF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHAT TAT THET TAT TET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets EMEBEE 3,774,372 3,462,540 3,695,436 3,714,606 3,855,786
Current assets MEEE 2,664,599 2,828,965 3,043,623 4,032,442 3,355,582
Current liabilities REAE (882,269)  (1,480,097) (908,756)  (1,243,626)  (1,482,064)
Non-current liabilities ERBAER (1,498,074)  (1,309,017)  (2,083,932) (2,571,725  (1,558,663)
Total equity RS iaEE 4,058,628 3,502,391 3,746,371 3,931,697 4,170,641
Attributable to: AT &7 L
Owners of the Company ZA/NSIEZSUN 3,741,978 3,240,204 3,507,562 3,707,903 3,954,749
Non-controlling interests IEIm M RE RS 316,650 262,187 238,809 223,794 215,892
4,058,628 3,502,391 3,746,371 3,931,697 4,170,641
Note: Amounts disclosed in the summary of financial information for prior years were iz - IR ER M EARE Y BAEESBIEEE
extracted from the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016. HE_Z—RF+-_A=+—"RHILFEZER-
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AMVIG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Room 601-602, 6th Floor, COFCO Tower,
262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2970 7000 Fax: +852 2970 7070
Www.amvig.com

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources
FSC

wosscog  FSC™ C021898

Design and Production by: Toppan Vintage Limited
Website: www.toppanvintage.com
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